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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG
KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment risk
may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware
of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more
suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more
susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given that
there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this
report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for
any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited (the
“Directors”) collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of
giving information with regard to Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited and its subsidiary
(“the Group”). The directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and
belief: (1) the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading;
(2) there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement in this report misleading, and (3) all
opinions expressed in this report have been arrived at after due and careful consideration and are founded on bases
and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

ERBE

As the Chairman and on behalf of the Board of Directors (the
“Board”), | am pleased to present the audited consolidated result of
Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2016.

During the year under review, the total revenue of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2016 was RMB654,119,000, representing
an increase of 21% as compared with RMB539,134,000 for the
previous year. Profit for the year attributable to owners of the
Company increased to RMB142,670,000 from RMB117,638,000 last
year. For the year ended 31 December 2016, basic earnings per share
increased to RMB25.47 cents from RMB21.00 cents last year.

The achievements in 2016 were the results of joint effort of our staff
at all levels. In fact, the Board of Directors has already expressed its
view for 2016’s profitability in the 2015 annual report. As the state
speeded up the reform of the health care system and increased the
anti-corruption effort to increase pharmaceutical distribution, we
overcame the unfavorable factors relating to increased production
cost, lowering drug prices, limited prescription of medicines and rising
material costs, and achieved the targets set out in the beginning
of the year. As such, the Board would like to share its view on the
Company’s competitive edges with shareholders since these edges
would allow the Company to achieve further success in the coming
years.

Firstly, based on the sales growth of one single product, namely, the
Hai Kun Shen Xi capsule (8EEEZB %) as our target; we exerted
effort in increasing the sales of mainline products, strengthened
academic promotion and speeded up the development of unexplored
new markets and while ensuring clinical sales. In 2016, according
to the Notice on issuing the National Drug List for Basic Medical
Insurance, Work-Related Injury Insurance and Maternity Insurance
(2017) by the Ministry of Human Resources and Social Security of the
People’s Republic of China (ren she bu fa [2017] No.15), our Hai Kun
Shen Xi capsule was included in the national insurance drug list and
was awarded the second prize for technological improvement by the
Provincial Department of Science and Technology this year, thereby
stimulating the sales of the Company. Meanwhile, we continued to
increase the sales of Compound Huonaoshu capsule (#77)& IS &T B
£), our branded product, and made further efforts in the production
and marketing of injecting drugs, including Edaravone injection (=
I 25T 51 78) to improve our sales.
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On the other hand, the Research and Development Center of the
Company worked with a number of pharmaceutical universities,
research institutes and a number of experts in the field of drug
research and development and scholars to develop technologically
advanced new drugs, with special efficacy and a broad market
prospect.

Moreover, we have followed the management regulations of the new
version Good Manufacturing Practice, attached great importance to
staff training and strengthened the production management.

Finally, our trademark, “Changlong”, was accredited as China Famous
Trademark by the State Administration of Industry & Commerce of the
PRC in 2016.

The Group acknowledges the importance of environmental, social and
corporate governance as key elements in enhancing shareholders’
value. Thus it is dedicated to improving its policies in compliance
with the respective regulatory requirements and in accordance
with internationally recommended practices. To achieve this aim,
the Group has continuously reviewed its resources, strengthened
internal training and sought professional advice from experts so as to
safeguard interests of the Group and the Company’s shareholders as
a whole.

Looking ahead, we will demonstrate our capability and persistence
in adhering to our business philosophy, that is, “focusing on
technological innovation and serving the public and endeavouring in
the pursuit of health for people around the world”, with the ultimate
goal to achieve rapid growth and create a brighter future.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my heartfelt thanks
to all levels of staff and the management for their efforts and
contributions in 2016 and my deep gratitude to our clients, business
partners and owners for their utmost support.

By order of the Board
Zhang Hong
Chairman

Jilin Province, PRC
30 March 2017

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENRRDN

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group’s revenue
increased to RMB654,119,000 from approximately RMB539,134,000
while the profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company
increased to RMB142,670,000 from RMB117,638,000. For the year
ended 31 December 2016, basic earnings per share increased to
RMB25.47 cents from RMB21.00 cents last year.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the manufacturing and sales of
Hai Kun Shen Xi capsule (R & = B %) continued to be the Group’s
core source of revenue.

OPERATION REVIEW

Good Manufacturing Practice (GMP)

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company has already
obtained GMP certificates for the following:

1.

2.

10.

11.

12.

Tablets — valid until 28 January 2021

Capsules — valid until 28 January 2021
Bulk Drug (Gardema Extract) — valid until 28 January 2021
Membrane (Including Chinese Medicine Pretreatment &

Extraction) — valid until 28 January 2021

Pills (Condensate) (Including Chinese Medicine Pretreatment &
Extraction) — valid until 12 February 2020

Bulk Drug (Fucoidan) — valid until 12 February 2020

Powder for Injection (Cephalosporins) — valid until 29 December
2018

Lyophilized Powder for Injection — valid until 29 December 2018
Small Volume Parenteral Solutions — valid until 29 December
2018

Sterile Bulk Drug (Cefpiramide, Cefmenoxime Hydrachloride,
Cefepime Hydrachloride), Bulk Drug (Edaravone) — valid until 17

October 2018

Solution (External Use) — valid until 20 June 2018

Granules and Pills (Water Pills) — valid until 26 September 2017
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RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

The Research and Development (R&D) department is essential for the
future success of a pharmaceutical company. In the past, our R&D
department had successfully developed the medicine, Compound
Huonaoshu capsule, which had generated huge profit to the Group
and finally led to the listing of the Company in Hong Kong. In the year
of 2003, our R&D department completed the development of Hai Kun
Shen Xi capsule, which has now become the first largest contributor
of revenue and its revenue reached our target level.

PRODUCTION FACILITIES

In 2016, the property, plant and equipment of the Group was
increased by RMB8,622,000 and the construction in progress was
approximately RMB4,649,000. We believe the production capacity of
the Group will be further enhanced.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group’s recorded
a revenue amounted to approximately RMB654,119,000 (2015:
RMB539,134,000), an increase of approximately 21% as compared
with the figure of the previous year. The audited profit for the
year attributable to owners of the Company was approximately
RMB142,670,000, representing an increase of 21% as compared with
RMB117,638,000 of the previous year. The basic earnings per share
amounted to RMB25.47 cents (2015: RMB21.00 cents), representing
an increase of RMB4.47 cents over the previous year.

The Board of Directors is pleased with the financial performance in
2016. It is believed that the maintenance of profitability is attributed to
the following reasons:

Firstly, we emphasized on sales and distribution and achieved
breakthrough with the rapid growth of sales of our dominant products,
reaching our sales target.

Secondly, we have followed the management regulations of the new
version Good Manufacturing Practice, attached great importance to
staff training and strengthened the production management in 2016,
bolstering the growth and development of the Group.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Thirdly, we continued to strengthen academic promotion and
develop the unexplored new markets while proactively organizing and
participating in academic promotion in relation to nephrology at state
level.

Fourthly, we strengthened our efforts on integrating market resources,
encouraging reasonable mobility of personnel, unifying the price
of products supplied and regulating sales practices. Focusing on
enhancing clinical sales, efforts were made in various areas, such as
soliciting business from the medicine departments of hospitals, in
order to identify new profit drivers.

Fifthly, we enhanced our efforts to recruit new sales staffs and are
dedicated to train sales teams in order to improve their overall quality
and strengthen their capabilities. We have nurtured the sense of
overall awareness and the sense of responsibilities among every
salesperson in charge of regional markets and provincial sales
managers. Meanwhile, we have also focused on getting our products
covered by local medical insurance and included in the supplemental
catalogue for the new rural cooperative medical system. We also put
in efforts on product tender and filing of product prices. Through our
concerted effort, we accelerated the development of markets and
hence making our market coverage wider.

The gross profit margin for the year ended 31 December 2016 was
approximately 79.3%, representing a 0.6% decrease as compared
with that of 79.9% for the year ended 31 December 2015.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group recorded other
income and gains of approximately RMB16,135,000, contrasting to a
figure of RMB23,913,000 for the year ended 31 December 2015.

Distribution and selling costs increased to approximately
RMB327,202,000 for the year ended 31 December 2016 from
approximately RMB271,170,000 in last year. These expenses
accounted for 50.02% of revenue in 2016, which represented a
0.28% decrease from 50.30% as compared with the corresponding
period of last year.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, administrative expenses
decreased to approximately RMB40,400,000 from approximately
RMB45,534,000 last year.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group has maintained a sound financial position during this
year. As at 31 December 2016, cash and bank balances of the
Group amounted to RMB154,738,000 (2015: RMB183,104,000) with
total borrowings of RMB2,970,000 (2015: RMB7,590,000) which
were interest bearing at commercial rates and unsecured. As at 31
December 2016, the Group had total assets of RMB1,075,256,000
(2015: RMB907,994,000) which were financed by current liabilities of
RMB180,198,000 (2015: RMB152,941,000), long term borrowings
of RMB2,273,000 (2015: RMB2,908,000), deferred tax liabilities
of RMB246,000 (2015: RMB327,000) and shareholders’ equity of
RMB866,625,000 (2015: RMB723,955,000).

GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had a net cash and cash
equivalents of RMB154,738,000. As at 31 December 2016, the ratio
of the total liabilities to the total assets of the Group was 19% (2015:
20%) which was calculated by dividing the Group’s total liabilities
of RMB208,631,000 (2015: RMB184,039,000) by the Group’s total
equity and liabilities of RMB1,075,256,000 (2015: RMB907,994,000).
The Group’s gearing ratio which derived from the total borrowings to
total net assets was 0.3% (2015: 1.1%).

EMPLOYEES

The Group has a total of 728 full-time employees and has employed
some temporary sales persons.

Remuneration is determined by reference to market conditions
and the performance, qualifications and experience of individual
employee. Discretionary bonuses based on individual performance
will be paid to employees as recognition of and reward for their
contribution. Other benefits include contributions to retirement
scheme and medical scheme.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND CORPORATE
RESPONSIBILITY

As a responsible corporation, the Group is committed to maintaining
the highest environmental and social standards to ensure sustainable
development of its business. The Group has complied with all relevant
laws and regulations in relation to its business including health and
safety, workplace conditions, employment and the environment.
The Group understands a better future depends on everyone’s
participation and contribution. It has encouraged employees,
customers, suppliers and other stakeholders to participate in
environmental and social activities which benefit the community as a
whole.

The Group maintains strong relationships with its employees, has
enhanced cooperation with its suppliers and has provided high quality
products and services to its customers so as to ensure sustainable
development.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Zhang Hong

Aged 62, male, is the Chairman and secretary of the Party committee.
He holds a bachelor degree and is a senior economist. His previous
positions are as follows: He was a teacher and the secretary of Youth
League Committee of Huinan No. 4 Middle School from September
1978 to October 1983; he worked in county and town governments
from November 1983 to September 1989, during which he held
the position of deputy town head; he has been the Chairman, and
secretary of the Party committee of Jilin Province Huinan Changlong
Bio-pharmacy Company Limited since October 1989.

Zhang Xiao Guang

Aged 53, male, is an executive director and general manager. He
holds a bachelor degree and is a senior economist. He held the
positions of the secretary of Youth League Committee of Chaoyang
town engineer affairs equipment factory of Shenyang railway bureau
from July 1983 to September 1989; deputy director of foreign trade
bureau of Huinan County from October 1989 to November 1990;
executive director and deputy general manager of the Company since
December 1990; appointed as general manager since January 2015.

Zhao Bao Gang

Aged 50, male, is an executive director and chief finance officer.
He holds a bachelor degree and is a certified accountant, certified
estimator and senior accountant. From August 1990 to May 1995,
he acted as director of Finance Bureau of Huinan County; from
June 1995 to February 2007, he held the position of director and
equipment executive director and finance officer of Jilin Province
Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited and was
appointed as executive director and chief finance officer of the
Company since March 2007.

Wu Guo Wen

Aged 52, male, is an executive director and deputy sale director.
He holds a master degree and senior engineer. From September
1988 to August 1991, he studied in Shanghai Medicine University;
from February 1993 to May 1996, he pursued master degree in
Jilin University; from June 1996 to August 2007, he acted as chief
engineer of Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company and was
appointed as executive director and chief engineer on 9 August 2007;
appointed as deputy sale director of part of east China since 2010.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Gao Yong Cai

Aged 61, male, Mr. Gao is a Chinese Certified Public Accountant. He
has over 30 years of experience in audit and accounting services. He
is currently serving as a partner of the Huinan Jin Shi Joint Certified
Public Accountant (#r & EBtE S5HENETEAT). Prior to this, he was
a partner of Huinan County Audit Firm (B &EHEIE4AT). He
worked at the Resources Bureau of Huinan County (/i &¥E B)
from 1974 to 1994.

Ms. Tian Jie

Aged 45, female, holds a bachelor’s degree. Ms. Tian has been
working at Jilin Huifa Law Firm (%5 #M& 125 2B E 7% FT) since March
1993 and has over 20 years of experience in legal matters. She is
currently serving as the director of Jilin Huifa Law Firm.

Ms. Qiu Fang Ping

Aged 61, female, is a member of the third branch of the Jiu San
Society. She graduated from Jilin University, with a bachelor’'s degree
in chemistry, a master degree in science and a doctorate degree in
science, majoring in biochemistry and molecular biology from the
College of Life Science. She was awarded the title of Professional
Technological Talents with Outstanding Contribution in Jilin Province
(the 10th Batch), Experts with Outstanding Contribution in Changchun
City (the 4th Batch) and Top Creative Talents in Jilin Province (the
3rd Batch). In 2009, she was engaged as a part-time professor and
PHD students of applied chemistry in the College of Chemistry, Jilin
University. She worked in Jilin Engineering Institute for Light Industry
Co., Ltd from 1978 to 1999. She has been a professor in Changchun
University of Technology since 1999.

SUPERVISORS

Zhao Gang

Aged 59, male, holds an associate degree. He served as head of toll
station of Changbai Company in Chaoyang Town from 2000 to 2010.
Since 2011, he has been working in Jilin Province Huinan Changlong
Bio-pharmacy Company Limited (& BEREACEERHER
72 7)) and has acted as the Chairman of supervisory committee and is
now in charge of the administration of the Company.

Wu Wei Men

Aged 47, male, graduated from Dandong Textile Training School with
associated degree in industrial accounting in 1991. From 1991 to
2004, he worked as finance director of hardware factory of Huinan
County. He joined Changlong Bio-pharmacy in 2004 and has acted as
supervisor of the Company since 9 August 2007.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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Wang Ying Xu

Aged 33, male, holds an associate degree. He worked in Jilin
Huatai Certified Public Accountants (FM& EZSETAIEEAT) from
September 2006 to December 2006. Since 2007, he has been
working in Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company
Limited and now serves as officer in finance department of the
Company.

OTHER SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mok Sai Cheong Mark

Aged 36, male, is the qualified accountant and company secretary.
He holds a Bachelor’s degree in accounting. He is a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. He has over 14
years of experience in auditing and accounting.

Yang Ze Shu

Aged 49, male, graduated from Yanbian Medical College in 1992 with
a bachelor degree. He is Chief Quality Officer and chief pharmacist
and senior engineer. From 1992 to 1999, he acted as dean of
Pharmaceutical office of Institute for Drug Control. He has worked as
chief quality officer of the Company since 2000.
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The Directors present their report and the audited financial statements
of the Company and of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2016.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The Company was established as a state-owned enterprise in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) in 1989. On 29 December
1995, under the relevant provisions of the PRC Company Law, the
Company was re-organised from a state-owned enterprise to a
limited liability company. On 16 August 1996, with the approval of the
Economic Restructuring Commission of Jilin Province, the Company
was further converted into a joint stock limited company. On 20
April 1999, the Company made a bonus issue from capitalisation of
retained profits at the proportion of one bonus share for every two
existing shares.

The Company’s H shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market
(“GEM”) of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 24 May 2001.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and distribution
of Chinese medicines and pharmaceutical products in the PRC
under the brand names of Changlong and Qing Tong. There were no
changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the
year.

Business review of the Group is set out in the paragraph headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

The Group has only one business segment which is the manufacture
and distribution of Chinese medicines and pharmaceutical products in
the PRC. In 2016, revenue of the Group was generated entirely from
sales in the PRC and all identifiable assets of the Group are located
in the PRC. Accordingly, no business or geographical segmental
analysis is prepared for the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 and the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group at that date are set
out in the financial statements on pages 44 to 115.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following is a summary of the published results and the assets
and liabilities of the Group prepared on the basis set out in the notes
below. This summary is not part of the audited financial statements.

MBEREE

DT AREEEAEANREERE BB
Z DRTXHEMBEERE  AEETBE
BEMBHRZ—HH -

Results E
2016 2015
—E—RF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Revenue PN 654,119 539,134
Profit before income tax MR P15 %4 il A 167,285 137,782
Income tax expense Frig®isz it (24,615) (20,144)
Profit for the year from ordinary activities ~ AREE AR BIREIF G AFE(R
attributable to owners of the Company AR K aA 142,670 117,638
Assets and liabilities BEREE
2016 2015
—E—REF —E—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARETIT
Total assets BEE 1,075,256 907,994
Total liabilities BwEE (208,631) (184,039)
Net assets BEFE 866,625 723,955

BEARER BIOLOGICAL ASSETS, PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INTANGIBLE
ASSETS

Details of movements in bearer biological assets, property, plant and
equipment, and intangible assets of the Group during the year are set
out in Notes 16, 17 and 21 to the financial statements respectively.

TERENEE - WX - BERR
BURELEE

RER  AEEBTRBEVEE  VE  BEK
REANEREE 2 EBFIE D RIHR I EHRE
MizE16 ~ 17%21

TG B REA(CEERNBERAR
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MATERIAL INVESTMENTS, ACQUISITIONS AND
DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATED
COMPANIES

The Group made no material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries
and affiliated companies during the year ended 31 December 2016.
As at 31 December 2016, the Group had no other future plans
for material investments or significant changes in capital assets of
subsidiaries and affiliated companies.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company are set out in Note 20
to the financial statements.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of borrowings of the Group are set out in Note 29 and 30
to the financial statements.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The operations of the Group were financed mainly by shareholders’
equity. The Group will continue to adopt its treasury policy of placing
the Group’s cash and cash equivalents in interest bearing deposits,
and to fund operations with internal resources.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during the year
are set out in Note 33 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group and of the Company
during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and in Note 34 to the financial statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2016, the reserves of the Company available
for cash distribution or distribution in specie was amounted to
approximately RMB726,463,000 (2015: RMB595,408,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the Group sold about 17% of its goods to its five
largest customers (2015: 20%) and sales to the largest customer
included therein accounted for 4% (2015: 6%) of the Group’s total
sales.

In the year under review, the Group’s purchases from the five largest
suppliers accounted for about 23% (2015: 17%) of the Group’s
total purchases and purchases from the largest suppliers therein
accounted for 6% (2015: 4%) of the Group’s total purchases.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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None of the directors of the Company or any shareholders who, to the
best knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five
largest customers and five largest suppliers noted above.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

For the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group mainly
generated revenue and incurred costs in Renminbi. The directors
consider the impact on foreign exchange exposure of the Group
is minimal. Accordingly the Group did not employ any financial
instruments for hedging purposes.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Details of the capital commitments of the Group as at 31 December
2016 are set out in Note 35 to the financial statements.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities.

DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The Directors and Supervisors of the Company during the year and up
to the date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Hong (Chairman)
Mr. Zhang Xiao Guang

Mr. Zhao Bao Gang

Mr. Wu Guo Wen

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Gao Yong Cai

Ms. Tian Jie

Ms. Qiu Fang Ping

Supervisors

Mr. Zhao Gang (appointed on 16 June 2016)
Mr. Zhang Jing Zhou (resigned on 19 May 2016)
Mr. Wu Wei Men

Mr. Li Bao Hai (resigned on 19 May 2016)

Mr. Wang Ying Xu (appointed on 16 June 2016)

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out in the section “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” of the annual report.
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DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Listed below are the names of all the Directors who have served on
the boards of the Group’s subsidiaries during the year and up to the
date of this Report:

Zhang Hong
Zhang Xiao Guang
Zhao Bao Gang
Wu Guo Wen

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS AND THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

Details of the Directors’ and Supervisors’ emoluments and those of
the five highest paid individuals in the Group are set out in Note 14 to
the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS OR LETTERS OF APPOINTMENT

Each of the Directors and Supervisors (including the Independent
Non-Executive Directors and the Supervisors) has entered into a
service contract or letter of appointment with the Company for a term
of three years. None of the Directors or the Supervisors had entered
into any service contract or letter of appointment with the Company
which is not terminable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS
IN CONTRACTS

No directors had a significant beneficial interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of the Group
to which the Company or its subsidiaries was a party during the year.

PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

At no time during the financial year and up to the date of this directors’
report, there was or is, any permitted indemnity provisions being in
force for the benefit of any of the directors of the Company or any of
its subsidiaries.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS

IN SHARES

At 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions of the
Directors, supervisors and chief executives of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the minimum standards of dealing by directors as referred to in
Rule 5.46 to 5.67 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM
Listing Rules”) were as follows:

EERESERROMERS

RZZE—AR"F+-_A=+—8 A2AEF &
ERFTETHRAERARRIREAEBR ZE(TE
FHMEEEN([EFHRBAEE ) EXVEE)
B ABERD RESFTHEEREBFES KRR
Bl EE35215 » BF A ZIKFT il & R M A s
KA - SRR R FTAIZEREFE S L ARA (A%
R ETR AN ]) 54616 E5.67TIRFTIEESER &
ERIZEmMBNEG A QR R FTH R MR I
™~

Long positions in shares RBROHNRE

Percentage of

total registered

Type of Number of Percentage of Share Capital

Director Interests Capacity Domestic Shares Domestic Shares (G IRA

= R 14 RERHE ERERBD L WEZ L

Zhang Hong Personal Beneficial owner 101,937,000 26.29 18.19
5% 5h EA BEREAA

Zhang Xiao Guang Personal Beneficial owner 42,315,000 10.91 7.55
SRS (PN BEREAA

Wu Guo Wen Personal Beneficial owner 900,000 0.232 0.161
REIX (PN BEREAA

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, none of the B EXFEEZEEIN  R-E—XR"F+_A=1+—

Directors, supervisors and chief executives of the Company has
any interests and short positions in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
minimum standards of dealing by directors as referred to in Rule 5.46
to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.

B ARAESE BERTIETBRASHRERA
RENEEBEE (EERE R RBEERHIEXV
IR - HERODRESFTHRARBERE SR
HIE RIS 35216  RIIAZIGAT AL E DM r 42
wmEORR  RIBBAIFER ETWRAES 46162
SE7THAMEERERREBREMBMEARE R
B PE R KA R
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Saved as disclosed under the headings “Directors’ and supervisors’
interests in shares” above, at no time during the year were there any
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in
or debentures of the Company granted to any director, supervisor
and chief executive or their respective spouses or children under
18 years of age, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was
the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries a party
to any arrangement to enable the directors, supervisors and chief
executives to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

INTERESTS DISCLOSEABLE UNDER THE SFO
AND SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2016, the following persons (other than the
Directors, supervisors and chief executives of the Company) had
interests and short positions in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO.

EEBAROAER
REXTEERESRIRNOED | —BAEEE
S BEE BEENTIBITRABRFEFEEN
BT N\EA T FRMBEERIITEEMER
BAXRBIRMHESFMERME 2R A
NE - HERARREAANE R NER T
MRPE REE  EERIBITHRABATREM
HAiZEBAZETER -

BRER
RIE-—RFT-A=1+—0 BRAQFRE
7 LB GPIFEI36HEEFHI R B MAER

BTFAL(AARES EERESTRABR
SNRAD TR RATRIRRA B BB B AR o

Long positions in Domestic shares RREBRHRER
Percentage of
Capacity/ Number of Percentage of total registered
Name of shareholder Nature of Interest Domestic Shares Domestic Shares Share Capital
1k 48 5 A B A
BREREB BinEmtE NEREHE HTRERBDL NWEZHK
Huinan County SAB (Note) Beneficial owner 81,975,000 21.14 14.63

ERRMREEGREERAR(ME) BRERA

Note: Apart from the equity interest in the Company, Huinan County SAB does not have

Bret : BRAMEARRMBRAERSN  BEBMRIKAEEREE

any direct or indirect interest in the Company, including representatives in the AR EEA R R AR EEREEER - AEEE
Board of Directors. EEANKEK -
Long positions in H shares RHERHERE
Percentage of
Number of Percentage of  total registered

Name of shareholder Capacity H Shares H Shares Share Capital
LB AR A

REEM &4 HR# B EHRBE S MWESL

Chen Jingwei Beneficial owner 29,520,000 1711 5.269

BRm e BEREAA

Shen Qianzhen Beneficial owner 13,996,000 SN (R 2.498

XEL BEmEAA

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2016



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

ESEHREE

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, the Directors
were not aware of any other person (other than the Directors,
Supervisors and Chief Executives of the Company) who had interests
and short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group and the
Company were entered into or were in existence during the year.

COMPETING INTEREST

None of the Directors, the management shareholders, the significant
shareholders or the substantial shareholders (as defined in the GEM
Listing Rules) of the Company had any interest in a business, which
competes or may compete with the business of the Group.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHT

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the article
of association of the Company or the laws of the PRC, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company was established, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had no material related party transactions,
which constituted connected transactions under the GEM Listing Rules.

STAFF RETIREMENT SCHEME

Details of the staff retirement scheme of the Group and the employer’s
staff retirement costs charged to the profit and loss account for the
year are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company set up an Audit Committee on 24 May 2001 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the requirements as
set out in Rules 5.28 and 5.29 of the GEM Listing Rules. The primary
duties of the Audit Committee are to review and provide supervision
over the financial reporting procedures and internal control system of
the Group.
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The committee has reviewed with the management the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and discussed internal
controls and financial reporting matters, including a review of the
audited results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published
audited financial statements and reclassified as appropriate, is set out
on page 116 of the annual report. This summary does not form part of
the audited financial statements.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and to the best of the directors’ knowledge, as at the date of this
annual report, there was a sufficient prescribed public float of the
issued shares of the Company under the GEM Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A report on the principle corporate governance practices adopted by
the Company is set out on pages 23 to 30 of the annual report.

AUDITORS

A resolution will be submitted to Annual General Meeting of the
Company to re-appoint the auditors, Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK)
CPA Limited.

By order of the Board

Zhang Hong
Chairman

Jilin Province, PRC
30 March 2017
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to achieve high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interest of its shareholders and enhance
its corporate value. Throughout the year ended 31 December 2016
and up to the date of this annual report, the Company has complied
with the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 15 of the
GEM Listing Rules.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by directors on terms no less than the required standard
of dealings as set out in rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.
The Company has also made specific enquiry of all Directors and the
Company was not aware of any non-compliance with the required
standard of dealings and its code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors throughout the year ended 31 December
2016.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND BOARD MEETINGS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Hong (Chairman)
Mr. Zhang Xiao Guang

Mr. Zhao Bao Gang

Mr. Wu Guo Wen

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Gao Yong Cai

Ms. Tian Jie

Ms. Qiu Fang Ping

As at the date of this report, the Board comprised seven Directors,
four of whom are Executive Directors, three of whom are INEDs of the
Company. Details of backgrounds and qualifications of each Director
are set out on the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors
and Senior Management” of this annual report.
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The Board is responsible for corporate strategy, annual and interim
results, succession planning, risk management, major acquisitions,
disposals and capital transactions, and other significant operational
and financial matters. Major corporate matters that are specifically
delegated by the Board of Directors to the management include the
preparation of annual and interim accounts for Board approval before
public reporting, execution of business strategies, implementation
of adequate systems of internal controls and risk management
procedures, and compliance with relevant statutory requirements and
rules and regulations. Executive Directors are responsible for running
the Group and executing the strategies adopted by the Board. The
INEDs serve the relevant function of bringing independent judgement
on the development, performance and risk management of the Group
through their contributions in board meeting.

All Directors have given sufficient time and attention to the affairs of
the Group. Each executive Director has sufficient experience to hold
the position so as to carry out his duties effectively and efficiently.

The Board considers that each INED of the Company is independent
in character and judgement. The Company has received from each
INED a written confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.

The Board meets at least four times each year at approximately
quarterly intervals to discuss the Group’s business development,
operation and financial performance. Board papers are circulated not
less than 7 days before the Board meetings to enable the Directors
to make informed decisions on matters to be raised at the board
meetings. Minutes of board meetings are kept be the Company
Secretary and are open for inspection at any reasonable time on
reasonable notice by any Director.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, there is no financial, business
and family relationship among the members of the Board.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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Board meetings
During the year, seven regular board meetings were held. Details of
the attendance of the Directors are as follows:

EExeeR
FRBRITEAEREESSH -
BT

EFEQHRE

Meetings attended/Held

Directors 2= BHE CETERE
Executive Directors BITES

Mr. Zhang Hong (Chairman) SRoAF A (EE) 77
Mr. Zhang Xiao Guang R A 7/7
Mr. Zhao Bao Gang 2 M) 5 A 717
Mr. Wu Guo Wen REIXEHE 7/7
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUMITES

Mr. Gao Yong Cai =KA A& 7/7
Ms. Tian Jie a3 oamn 6/7
Ms. Qiu Fang Ping ¥+ 6/7
Apart from the above regular board meetings of the years, the Board KLillRFEZFHEFeeHIN 220k

of Directors will meet on other occasions when a board-level decision
on a particular matter is required. The Directors will receive details
of agenda items for decision and minutes of committee meetings in
advance of each board meeting.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under the code provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. Mr. Zhang Hong assumes the role of both
the chairman and the chief executive officer of the Company. The
Board is of the view that this has not compromised accountability and
independent decision making for the following reasons:

- the Audit Committee composes exclusively of Independent
Non-executive Directors;

- the Independent Directors have free and direct access to the
Company’s external auditors and independent professional
advice when considered necessary.
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Mr. Zhang Hong, the chairman, is a substantial shareholder of the
Company and has considerable industry experience. He is motivated
to contribute to the growth and profitability of the Group. The Board
is of the view that it is in the best interests of the Group to have
an executive chairman so that the Board can have the benefit of a
chairman who is knowledgeable about the business of the Group
and is most capable to guide discussions and brief the Board in a
timely manner on pertinent issues and developments to facilitate open
dialogue between the Board and the management.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company appointed INEDs who have appropriate and sufficient
experience and qualification to carry out their duties so as to protect
the interests of shareholders. Mr. Gao Yong Cai, Ms. Tian Jie and Ms.
Qiu Fang Ping are the INEDs.

All INEDs are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with
the articles of association of the Company. All the existing INEDs
are appointed for an initial term of three years and the term of office
shall continue after the expiration of the initial term until at least 1
month’s prior written notice is given by either party or the Company to
terminate the same.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME

Every Director receives comprehensive, formal and tailored induction
on appointment and they are continually updated on developments
in the statutory and regulatory regime, and the business and
market changes to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities
and obligations under the GEM Listing Rules and relevant statutory
requirements.

To ensure that all Directors’ contribution into the Board remain
informed and relevant, they have participated in continuous
professional development for the year ended 31 December 2016 to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skill. During the year under
review, the Company has provided updates and coordinated training
on the GEM Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements to the
Directors.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

According to the Code, the Company has set up a Remuneration
Committee on 29 September 2005. As at the date of this report, the
chairman of the committee is Mr. Gao Yong Cai, an INED, and other
members include Ms. Tian Jie, Ms. Qiu Fang Ping and Mr. Zhang
Hong. The remuneration committee schedules meet at least once a
year and the quorum necessary for the transaction of business is two.
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The role and function of the Remuneration Committee included the
determination of the specific remuneration packages of all executive
Directors, including benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation
payments, including any compensation payable for loss or termination
of their office or appointment, and make recommendations to
the board of the remuneration of non-executive Directors. The
remuneration committee should consider factors such as salaries paid
by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities of
the Directors, employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and
desirability of performance-based remuneration.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016, the Remuneration
Committee held two meeting. The individual attendance records of
each member are as follows:

SNEEez AR BREEMAENTES
ZEEFHES  BREVNE  RRSRHEE
NR(BRERERRUEREBRMUIZ TR Z
TABE) ARAESTERIFNTEST ZFHBIE
HEH - FNLESREESERER - fImAltt
RRRXfz#He  EFREZHERRET X
SEEMMTT 2R GEN RIRRIREEF M2 AT
HRME

REBE-_Z—RE+-_A=+—RIHBFE
YMEZEERTTMASH -  SKEZERHE
BRI ¢

Meetings attended/Held

Members RE EHE BEITES
Mr. Gao Yong Cai KA S 2/2
Ms. Tian Jie A+ 2/2
Ms. Qiu Fang Ping ¥+ 2/2
Mr. Zhang Hong sRoASE A 2/2

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Remuneration Committee
reviewed matters relating to remuneration for the Directors and
members of senior management, and discussed the remuneration
policy of the Group.

The remuneration committee of the Company has considered and
reviewed the existing terms of employment contracts of the Executive
Directors and appointment letters of the INEDs. The Remuneration
Committee of the Company considers that the existing terms of
employment contracts of the Executive Directors and appointment
letters of the INEDs are fair and reasonable.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Nomination Committee according
to the relevant provisions of the GEM Listing Rules with written
terms of reference. Its primary responsibilities include reviewing and
supervising the framework, number of members and composition
of the Board and making proposals to the Board in respect of
any changes and identifying and nominating suitable persons for
appointment of Director.

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee comprises of
one Executive Director, Mr. Zhang Xiao Guang and three INEDs, Mr.
Gao Yong Cai, Ms. Tian Jie and Ms. Qiu Fang Ping, Mr. Gao Yong Cai
is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.
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Nomination procedures include identification and acknowledgement
of qualified individuals by the Nomination Committee, and review
and approval of such nominations by the Board. The Nomination
Committee will evaluate potential candidates considering factors such
as professional expertise, relevant experience, personal ethics and
integrity.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016, the Nomination
Committee held two meetings. During the meeting, the Nomination
Committee has reviewed and discussed the framework, number
of members and composition of the Board. Also, the Nomination
Committee has identified and made proposals in respect of the
outstanding appointment of Executive Directors and INEDs. The
individual attendance records of each member are as follows:

REBFEBEAREZZESHIIRBITRERA
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Meetings attended/Held

Members RE EHE CETEE
Mr. Gao Yong Cai =K A 2/2
Ms. Tian Jie B2+ 2/2
Ms. Qiu Fang Ping 5 A+ 2/2
Mr. Zhang Xiao Guang oKL 2/2

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in 2001 and currently
comprises three members, Mr. Gao Yong Cai, Ms. Tian Jie and Ms.
Qiu Fang Ping. All of them are INEDs. The chairman of the Audit
Committee is Mr. Gao Yong Cai. The Board considers that each
Audit Committee has broad commercial experience and there is a
suitable mix of expertise in business, legal, accounting and financial
management in the Audit Committee.

None of the members of the Audit Committee has any personal
financial interests, conflicts of interests arising from cross-
directorships or day-to-day involvement in the running of the
business. The Audit Committee oversees the financial reporting
process and the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
system of internal control. During the year, the Audit Committee
carried out their own independent review of the interim and annual
financial statements and financial reports and statements included
in circulars of the Company published during the year. And with the
assistance of the internal audit department, which reports directly
to the committee, the Audit Committee completed its review of the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s systems of internal
control and reported its findings and recommendations to the Board.
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The Audit Committee held four meetings during the year under review.
Details of the attendance of the audit committee meetings are as
follows:

Members RE

EREZEENEMEFEARBITOREH - BX
ZEEERILFEHBOT

= ad
BHEE

Meetings attended/Held
BHE BETER

Mr. Gao Yong Cai mIKA S
Ms. Tian Jie At
Ms. Qiu Fang Ping B S22+

4/4
4/4
4/4

The Group’s unaudited quarterly and interim results and annual
audited results during the year ended 31 December 2016 have been
reviewed by the Audit Committee, which was of the opinion that
the preparation of such results were complied with the applicable
accounting standards and requirements and that adequate disclosure
have been made.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited was the auditor of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2016. Other than annual
auditing services, Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited did not
provide non-auditing services to the Company or any of the Group’s
companies during the year.

Auditor’s remuneration for the year ended 31 December 2016 is set
out in Note 9 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors have the responsibilities for the preparation of the
financial statements of the Group and shall ensure that the financial
statements are in accordance with statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards. The Directors also ensure the timely
publication of the financial statements of the Group.

The statements of the external auditors of the Company, Reanda Lau
& Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited, about its reporting responsibilities on
the financial statements of the Group is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 36 to 43 of this annual report.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

In 2016, the Company Secretary took the relevant professional
training of 15 hours relating to general corporate governance issues.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for ensuring that the Group has a sound
and effective internal control system. The Group is committed to
the identification, monitoring and management of risks associated
with its business activities and has implemented a practical and
effective control system which includes a defined management
structure with limits of authority, a sound cash management system
and periodic review of the Group’s operation and performance by
the Audit Committee and the Board. The internal control system is
reviewed on an ongoing basis by the Board to ensure it is effective.
The Board is satisfied that, based on information furnished to it and
on its own observations, the present internal controls of the Group
are satisfactory. The Board has conducted review of the effectiveness
of the system of internal control and is of the view that the system of
internal control adopted for the year is sound and effective. The Group
does not maintain its own internal audit team for cost-saving reason
but the work is shared between related parties in the company to
assist the Audit Committee to review the effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management and internal control system.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company disclosed all necessary information to the shareholders
in compliance with GEM Listing Rules. Extensive information about
the Company’s activities is provided in the Annual Report and the
Interim Report which are sent to shareholders. There is regular
dialogue with institutional investors. Enquiries from individuals on
matters relating to their shareholdings and the business of the
Company are welcomed and are dealt with in an informative and
timely manner.

All shareholders have 45 days’ notice of the Annual General
Meeting at which all directors and Committee chairs are available
for questions. All shareholders are encouraged to attend the Annual
General Meeting.

LOOKING FORWARD

The Group will keep on reviewing its corporate governance standards
on a timely basis and the Board endeavors to take necessary actions
to ensure compliance with the required practices and standards
including the provisions of the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices introduced by the Stock Exchange.
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

Exefiss

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF JILIN PROVINCE HUINAN
CHANGLONG BIO-PHARMACY COMPANY LIMITED

(a joint stock limited company incorporated in the People’s Republic
of China with limited liability)

During the year ended 31 December 2016, in accordance with the
Company Law of the PRC, the requirements of the relevant laws
and regulations of Hong Kong and the articles of association of the
Company (the “relevant rules and regulations”), the Supervisory
Committee of the Company exercised conscientiously its authority,
safeguarded the interests of the shareholders of the Company and
the Company, and followed the principle of honesty and integrity and
worked cautiously and diligently.

During the year, we provided reasonable suggestions and advice on
the operations and development plans to the Directors and strictly
and effectively monitored whether the policies of the Company had
conformed with the relevant rules and regulations or safeguarded the
interests of the shareholders of the Company.

After investigation, we consider that the audited financial statements
of the Company give a true and fair picture of the operating results
and asset position of the Company. We also consider that the Report
of the Directors and the profit distribution proposal meet the relevant
rules and regulations. We have attended the meeting of the Board.
We are of the opinion that the meeting was convened in accordance
with the relevant rules and regulations. We consider that the members
of the Board, the general manager and other senior management
of the Company have strictly complied with the principle of honesty
and trustworthiness, worked diligently and sincerely exercised their
authority to the best interests of the Company. None of the Directors,
general manager nor other senior management of the Company have
abused their powers, caused damage to the interests of the Company
and infringed upon the interests of the Company shareholders and its
staff, nor have they violated the relevant rules and regulations.

We are satisfied with the various accomplishments and the cost-
effectiveness of the Company. We are confident that the Company will
have a good prospect of future development.

By order of the Supervisory Committee
Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited

Zhao Gang
Chairman

Jilin Province, PRC
30 March 2017
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ENVIRONMENT

Discharges

The major raw materials used by the Group in production are
various kinds of Chinese herbal medicines and their production
and operation may have a minor effect on the environment and the
natural resources. The Group actively fulfils its social responsibilities,
always adheres to the concept that development and environmental
protection are equally important and makes rational use of various
resources to protect the environment. The Company strictly complies
with the provisions of the Environmental Protection Law of the
People’s Republic of China so as to achieve saving energy and
consumption reduction, lowering discharges and improving efficiency,
and try our best to minimize the impact that the production and
operation process have on the ecosystem.

Use of resources

The Group also advocates the concept of green production so as
to achieve the target of energy saving, consumption lowering and
discharge reduction. The Company saved various kinds of resources
by optimising the technological process, enhancing the technology
standard, using LED energy-saving lighting and cutting down water
consumption during the production process. Moreover, with respect
to the protection and recycling of water resources, the Company
adopted a recycle system throughout the production process so as to
reduce the amount of water resources used.

Environment and natural resources

The Group pursues the best practice between the development
and the environment, and takes into careful consideration of all the
aspects and activities within the value chain to mitigate the impact
on the environment. To achieve the sustainable development of the
environment, the Group regularly provides environmental protection
information and practical advice related to environmentally friendly
living style to staff for circulation.

SOCIETY

Employment and labor practices

Employment

Employees are regarded as the greatest and most valuable assets
and core competitive advantages of the Group who continuously
provide the source of innovation for the Group. The Group
offers competitive remuneration and welfare, and implements
comprehensive performance appraisal scheme to award and praise
the staff with excellent performance and assists them with their
career development and promotion within the Group by providing
appropriate trainings and opportunities. Meanwhile, in order to
create a favorable and fair working environment for employees and
protect their physical and psychological health, the Group will give
careful consideration to all the valuable suggestions for improving
the working efficiency and harmonizing the working atmosphere
proposed by employees, thereby establishing a united, harmonious
and professional team for the Group.
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The Group strictly complied with the regulations and provisions of
laws in the PRC and Hong Kong, formulated and strictly implemented
the relevant management system and measures, and expressly
specified the employment, labor relations, treatment, promotion,
benefits and retirement of the staff to safeguard their interests.

The Group strictly complied with the PRC laws and regulations and
policies associated with social insurance, and made full contributions
to various social insurance and housing provident fund for all the staff
in a timely manner.

Health and safety

Employees are the most important wealth and resources of the
Group, therefore, the health and safety of employees are always the
top priority of the Company. The Company is committed to protecting
the employees with production safety while endeavour to protect and
care about their healthy and to provide a safe, healthy and protected
workplace.

The Group established a comprehensive management system in
occupational health and safety, strictly complied with the regulations
of occupational health and safety in mainland China and Hong Kong,
and laid a solid foundation for safe operation. As at 31 December
2016, the Group did not experience any significant safety accident
during the operation.

Development and training

The Group adopts the principle of unified management and stratified
training for the education and training of its staff. Upon joining the
Company, new employees must participate in pre-service training
focusing on the Company’s corporate culture, corporate policies and
goals, production safety, necessary skills, etc. A series of tailormade
training courses are provided to senior management and middle
management on anti-corruption practices for leaders as well as
trainings for middle and senior management of listed companies. The
Company will evaluate the training effects subsequently, so as to
enhance the pertinence and effectiveness of training, which will further
enhance the technical skills and professional quality of the Company’s
employees of each level achieving satisfactory results.

Labor criteria

There is a clear requirement on the age of applicants in the
recruitment management system of the Group. The Group will review
and check the identification information of applicants during the
recruitment process and absolutely no child labor will be employed.
Applicants should provide documents of educational background
and working experience for our verification when they report to work.
Any suspected applicants providing false documents of educational
background and working experience will not be employed. The Group
strives to create a safe, healthy and comfortable working environment
for the employees, and provide labor protection, reasonable
remuneration and various benefits to the employees. The Group
enters into an employment contract with each of the employees in
accordance with relevant regulations in the PRC and in Hong Kong,
and forbids any kind of forced labor.
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OPERATIONAL PRACTICES
Supply chain management

Supply chain management is always one of the key links in the
Company’s quality control system. The Company focuses on the risk
management of product quality and keeps a close eye on signals of
quality and safety crisis of its medicines. Attaching great importance
to product compliance, the Company organizes self-inspections and
rectifications in a timely manner to ensure product quality.

To ensure the quality of the purchased raw materials, auxiliary
ingredients and packaging materials, the Company has established
a supplier management system in strict compliance with the Law of
the PRC on the Administration of Pharmaceuticals, GMP, and other
relevant laws and regulations. A standardised management system is
implemented on the procurement of materials under a comparatively
well-established management system.

The Company also carries out long-term quality monitoring and
regular reviews on all suppliers. In case of a significant change in
supplier qualification or serious quality issue occurs, the Company
may suspend the delivery of the supplier in question immediately to
ensure the quality of the medicine of the Company.

Product liability

The Company is committed to ensuring product safety. Especially, as
most of our products are pharmaceuticals, product quality and safety
are undoubtedly the top priority of the Company.

The Company always sticks to strict product quality control
throughout the production process. The Company’s quality control is
executed primarily in accordance with relevant requirements of GMP
quality management system.

The Company has formulated a complete set of quality inspection
management standards covering traditional Chinese medical
materials, auxiliary ingredients, packaging materials, semi-finished
and finished products, and sets out requirements on various test
objects, test methods and test contents. During the year, the
Company had no products recall due to quality.

Meanwhile, the Company carried out advertisement promotion in
accordance with the law, further safeguarded the rights and interests
of consumers, ensured the legal compliance of the Company’s
advertisement promotion and stringently prohibited any acts that
would cause damage to the image of the Company and the brand,
such as illegal advertisements.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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Anti-corruption

All of the Group’s operations are in compliance with local and national
legislation on standards of conduct, such as with the Prevention of
Bribery Ordinance in Hong Kong and relevant legislation on anti-
corruption and bribery in mainland China.

The Group requires employees to strictly conform to code of business
ethics and forbids any corruption bribe behavior as stipulated
in the employment contracts. In case of any conflict of interest,
it must be reported to the Group’s management immediately.
Employees, who engage in business operations and represent the
Company’s professional image, are strictly prohibited to use business
opportunities or power for personal interest or benefit.

COMMUNITY

Community Investment and involvement

The Group always seeks to become a positive momentum
in the communities in which it operates and maintains close
communications and interactions with the communities in order to
contribute to local development.

The Group believes that the creation of a beautiful and peaceful
community relies on the cooperation of people, corporations and
the government. By working together with various community
partners, the Group believes it can bring a tremendous impact on the
sustainable development of the communities in which it operates.

The Group will also actively encourage the staff to volunteer their time
and skills to benefit local communities. It provides the employees
with the opportunities to explore more issues of the society and
environment and reinforce the Group’s corporate values.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF JILIN PROVINCE HUINAN
CHANGLONG BIO-PHARMACY COMPANY
LIMITED

(a joint stock limited company incorporated in the People’s Republic
of China with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Jilin
Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited (“the
Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 44
to 115, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31
December 2016, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2016, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

° Impairment of trade receivables

° Impairment of the unlisted financial instruments
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Impairment of trade receivables

Refer to Note 3 (critical accounting estimates and judgements) and
Note 24 (trade receivables) to the consolidated financial statements
for the related disclosures.

As at 31 December 2016, gross trade receivables of the Group
amounted to RMB311 million, which accounted for approximately
29% of the Group’s total assets. The provision for impairment of trade
receivables amounted to RMB41 million, all of which was attributable
to customers located in China.

The management performed periodic credit monitoring, which
included the review of customers’ credit worthiness, collection
of outstanding balances and individual credit terms. If there are
indicators that the receivables are impaired, the management would
make appropriate provision.

We focused on this area due to the magnitude of the receivables and
the estimation and judgement involved in the determination of the
recoverable amounts of trade receivables.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
Our audit procedures in relation to the management’s assessment on
recoverability of trade receivables included:

- Understood and validated the credit control procedures
performed by the management, including its procedures
on periodic review on aged receivables and assessment on
recoverability of these receivables;

= Tested on a sample basis, the accuracy of ageing profile on
trade receivables by checking to the underlying sales invoices;
and

- Tested subsequent settlement of trade receivables balances.
Where settlement had not been received subsequent to the
year end for those unprovided aged receivables beyond the
credit period as at year end, we obtained the management’s
assessment on the recoverability of these debts and
corroborated explanations with historical settlement pattern and
underlying correspondence with the relevant customers.

Based upon the above, we are satisifed that the estimation and
judgement made by the management in respect of the collectability of
receivables were supportable by the available evidence.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Impairment of the unlisted financial instruments

Refer to Note 23 (available-for-sale financial assets) to the
consolidated financial statements for related disclosure.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group held interest in certain unlisted
investment funds of RMB303 million which have been classified as
available-for-sale financial assets and are measured at cost less
impairment.

The management conducted periodic review on the market values
of those unlisted investment funds. If there are any indicators that
the financial instruments are impaired, the management would make
provision against individual balances with reference to the market
values.

We focused on this area because the total carrying value of these
financial instruments is 35% of the Group’s net assets value which is
considered significant.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
Our audit procedures in relation to the management’s assessment on
the existence of impairment indictors included:

- We reviewed relevant documents to understand the key terms of
the investment contracts;

— We conducted interviews with responsible officers of the banks
validate the existence of those contracts and their major terms;

- We obtained confirmations of the instruments’ market values
directly from the banks as at 31 December 2016; and

- We checked to the subsequent disposal of instruments valued
at RMB72.8 million of the unlisted investment funds

Based upon the above, we are satisfied that the assessment made
by the management in respect of the non-existence of impairment
indictors of financial instruments at the year end was reasonable.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

QOur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not and will not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information identified above
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance is responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BAZBMBRESE

.g REANDA

Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited

NRZZNEKE(FB)EEHENSEHABARAE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

21/F, Tai Yau Building, EBET
181 Johnston Road, HA2E1815%
Wanchai, Hong Kong RERE211E

BRBEOREA GRS BRRAEN
BfE

BANER  RESEMBEREABEBESIAFHE
MR ERF S EE AR T S B B R R B ERIS & 12
ReE - WHABRRMERNZBERE - A8,
HER BTUERRE)REM  RUZIARE
AIEEAM B K - HATERARENATRER
Hig AL B ESOREERAEE - SEREERK
FEMRE - ETRRERBCEBEALERDET
HERT  ERX - EAERRAFERBREER -
SEERBRUM AT AR KRR S EE ARSI R - WIRAIETEH
THEBIEALERATET BTV HRERER
ERBEAMBBRAELNEERE - AIEH
B 88 BR BRI AT AR AR A K

ERB(EBBFENETEANBRES - K
PERTERAE - RETERRREE - &
I

o BRIMFHEARRFFRERMEBGEY
BRERFEERERBCAORAR - RET R
MITEAEF A ELRR - A RER
ARMEZNRTERE  FARMAEED
i - IRNEFFA e RBR - BE B
BAER - ERERL - SZEBRAESZ
£ A REEHRARFMERHE A
MBI LR SRR BE IR R R MG
M B AR LR o

o THREZRHEMOANES - URFHEE
MEFER - BEEMNLIFHEREARRE
HEBRMERER -

s HEEEMRAEFTERRNEEEREL
SEHAFTMERREN SR -

TG B REA(CEERNBERAR
ZE—RFFR

41



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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BAZBMBRESE

R REANDA

Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited N iy

181 Johnston Road HEBEE1815%

F=ZRER R (T8 EEESEFEABIRAE Wanchai, Hong Kong ~ ABAIE211E

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE #ZEMMBA GRS BHRRAIEN
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL &E1&F(#&)
STATEMENTS (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the e ﬂé%%ﬁﬁ?ﬂtiﬁ%;\ﬁrgmﬂﬁ o IiH”E

going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit L o BIBFMERMNETRE BT
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related BHEAESELXEREH E’]EKT&EE
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the M MRS RSB REL S
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude NEEERSERE - REMABRAFEERKR
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw THEEMN AV EEZREARETIRS
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the FREIBGAUBHRERPAEBINE -
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are BREEBNBEETT - IRMESHRIE
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based EBREBER - BN EREER XA R
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s EHIEFESERRE - A 5&%%
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the EHIEN AT SR ERE T ERE -

Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the o I EBEAMEHmANEBEIHAR - &F

consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, MRS BRFEE URGEAHERERE
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the BRAERMRSMEIE o

underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the o FEEERNEESEBTHNTBIELE

financial information of the entities or business activities within B7ER BEMNERNERE  UWEHGEH
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial BREREXRER - BPEEEEEEH
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision FHA - EEBA#MIT - B AT E R AR
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely EEEAE ©

responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, FREMEIBEIN - RFIEAIEE SR T THEIMNET
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit &1 - BEE%ZH - EASTHES  BERMAE
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in &t % Bl P BB 5 6 (T (2] B AERFA ©
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BAZBMBRESE

.g REANDA

Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited

NRZZNEKE(FB)EEHENSEHABARAE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent

auditor’s report is Yu Kwong Man.

Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Yu Kwong Man
Director
Practising Certificate number P04645

Hong Kong, 30 March 2017
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

meBRmRkHMEEKER

For the year ended 31 December 2016
E B NFEf A= —HIFFE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARKEZETR)
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—AF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
k=3 AR® T ARETIT
Revenue WA 4 654,119 539,134
Cost of sales SHES AR (135,266) (108,352)
Gross profit EF 518,853 430,782
Other income HAaU A 6 15,635 23,913
Other gains H iz 7 500 -
Distribution and selling costs DIHRIBERT (327,202) (271,170)
Administrative expenses GG (40,400) (45,534)
Profit from operations w7l 167,386 137,991
Finance costs A& A AN 8 (101) (209)
Profit before income tax KR T 1554 B8 ) 9 167,285 137,782
Income tax expense FRS Bz i 10(a) (24,615) (20,144)
Profit for the year REE R A 142,670 117,638
Other comprehensive income Hih 2 mEUes _ _
Total comprehensive income for the year AEE2HN= A 142,670 117,638
Profit attributable to: DU L& F] -
Owners of the Company ViNINEIE Z PN 142,670 117,638
Total comprehensive income DT EAZ2EKES
attributable to: 4EEE
Owners of the Company ViN/NETEZ Z =N 142,670 117,638
Earnings per share BRAF
— Basic (RMB cents) —BEAR(ARED) 11 25.47 21.00

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial  B&MT 2 i T BRI iR R B EL 2 — 25 o
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

mEEERERX
As at 31 December 2016
R-ZE—NF1+ZH=1+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AAREET)
2016 2015
—EB-RF —ET—RF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Mt ARET R ARETIT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEERERE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Bearer biological assets TR EMEE 16 10,844 5,557
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENKEE 17 172,672 134,986
Prepaid land lease payments LS 18 15,974 16,428
Construction in progress EEIR 19 23,271 74,557
Intangible assets B EE 21 - 659
222,761 232,187
Current assets REEE
Inventories VER Y 22 26,055 28,764
Trade receivables TEUE ZEER 24 269,703 212,073
Other receivables, deposits EpEWERIE -« 5T &
and prepayments TE{T3RIE 25 93,005 84,412
Loans receivables U E R 26 5,000 12,500
Prepaid land lease payments At S 18 454 454
Available-for-sale financial assets A EMBEE 23 303,540 154,500
Cash and cash equivalents HERESZEEY 27 154,738 183,104
852,495 675,807
Current liabilities nEaE
Trade payables 2 SRR 28 31,698 21,857
Other payables, deposits received HbERFRIE - B
and accruals e NESTER 105,413 95,841
Deferred income IEFEHA 31 1,949 1,949
Income tax payable B AT R 20,120 13,416
Other tax payables H Ath fE S 18 18,853 13,695
Bank borrowings IRTTIE K 29 - 4,000
Loans from government authority BT B B 3R 30 697 682
Dividend payable FERTIRE 1,468 1,501
180,198 152,941
Net current assets RBEEZE 672,297 522,866
Total assets less current liabilities BWEERRBAERE 895,058 755,053
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

REEEREX

As at 31 December 2016
R-ZE—NF1+ZH=1+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UAREZTR)
2016 2015
e i i
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Mt AR® T ARETIT
Non-current liabilities FknBERE
Loans from government authority BT R E R 30 2,273 2,908
Bank borrowings RITEE 29 - -
Deferred income JRIEUT A 31 25,914 27,863
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFIBEE 32 246 327
28,433 31,098
Net assets BEEEE 866,625 723,955
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS A& R#EHE AEL
OF THE COMPANY R
Share capital N 33 56,025 56,025
Reserves i 810,600 667,930
Total equity XA 866,625 723,955

These financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by ZEFBHREN-_ZE—tF=A=THESFZ

the board of directors on 30 March 2017. B RIZ B o
ZHANG HONG ZHAO BAO GANG
R 54 HHE R
Director Director
EFE EBFE

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial — B&MT 2 i 5T BRI iR R B EL v — 2B o
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

RERBEHR

For the year ended 31 December 2016

(EE—NFr A= —HILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARKEZETR)
Statutory
Share Share surplus Retained
capital premium reserve profits Total
BRA RAGRE LERHEE REERA @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR¥Tn AR¥Tz AR%®Tz AR%Txm
(Note 33)  (Note 34(b)(i)  (Note 34(b)(ii))
(Hi#33)  (Wiztaam)) (i34l
Balance at 1 January 2015 R-E—RF—f—Hz&% 56,025 51,098 33,242 465,952 606,317
Comprehensive income 2EKEH
Profit for the year KEERF - - - 117,638 117,638
Other comprehensive income Hi2E kS - - - - -
Total comprehensive income el Gy - - - 117,638 117,638
Transactions with owners RE2RXS
Appropriation to statutory BB ATRBGHE
surplus reserve - - - - -
At 31 December 2015 RZE-A5+=-A=1+—H 56,025 51,098 33,242 583,590 723,955
Balance at 1 January 2016 RZE-—R"E-A—-RzEH 56,025 51,098 33,242 583,590 723,955
Comprehensive income ZHUNE
Profit for the year REZEF - - - 142,670 142,670
Other comprehensive income Hitn2 AR - - - - -
Total comprehensive income 2ANEEE - - - 142,670 142,670
Transactions with owners RRZRX 5
Appropriation to statutory BREECRSRRE
surplus reserve - - - - -
At 31 December 2016 R—E—NFt+-A=1—H 56,025 51,098 33,242 726,260 866,625

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

AN ==
mERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE—FE—NF+-A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARKEZETR)
2016 2015
ZE-AF “T-h1%
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
i3 ARETR ARET T
Cash from operating activities RETHELE2HS
Profit before income tax B ET B AR A 167,285 137,782
Adjustments for: HEIFE
Interest income I ON 6 (5,222) (4,867)
Yield gain on available-for-sale financial assets A E RS A E 3R e 6 (2,837) (790)
Provision for impairment of trade receivables W E 5 ERFURE
& 6,9 8,286 24,720
Provision for impairment of other receivables Ho At e W TR IE Rl (B B 9 95 189
Interest expenses AMELTH 8 101 209
Write off of slow-moving inventories AT EME 9 1,558 4,336
Write off of bearer biological assets TR LA EMH 9 499 =
Write off of construction in progress R TI2 M 9 8,537 -
Reversal of provision for impairment on N ETRE
loans receivables [o] £ 6 (2,500) (2,816)
Amortisation of intangible assets ERREEH 9 659 1,860
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments At + 30 4 9 454 453
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - WENRIBITE 9 18,322 16,233
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE BEK
plant and equipment REEE 9 12 60
Gain on disposal of subsidiary HE—RB QAW E 7 (500) -
Government subsidies E&T%ﬁﬁﬁ 6 (102) (140)
Recognition of deferred income FERIELE A 6 (3,849) (3,362)
Operating cash flows before working HEASEPR KL
capital changes BemE 190,798 173,867
Decrease in inventories FERD 1,151 535
Increase in trade receivables FEURE 5 R 5038 (65,916) (6,597)
(Increase)/decrease in other receivables, deposits — H A EUFIE « 5] K
and prepayments iﬁﬁy’lﬁ(i‘ﬂﬂ)/ﬂﬁ‘ (8,688) 3,157
Decrease in loans receivables EURETUR D - 316
Increase in trade payables JE1S B 58RI 0 9,841 8,298
Increase/(decrease) in other payables, deposits Hit AR - BWET S
received and accruals REFTBREM/ (RD) 9,572 (8,707)
Increase/(decrease) in other tax payables H b EAFEL N,/ Chd) 5,158 (152)
Cash generated from operations R EL 7S 141,916 170,717
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

AN ==
mERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE—FE—NF+-A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UAREZT)
2016 2015
— A —Z-hF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
i3 ARETR ARET T
Cash flows from operating activities EEBHELCHERE
Cash generated from operations %« **%%EEZE&% 141,916 170,717
Income tax paid ERER (17,992) (18,895)
Interest paid ERHE 8 (101) (209)
Net cash generated from operating activities ~ K& FBHELCHLFE 123,823 151,613
Cash flows from investing activities REXBEL2HERE
Purchase of bearer biological assets BETLAENEE 16 (5,786) (388)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment EEME  BEMRE 17 (8,622) (1,143)
Purchase of construction in progress BEERETRE 19 (4,649) (8,055)
Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets BEAHEEMBEE 23 (647,540) (215,000)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYE  BRERREFERE
plant and equipment - 100
Proceeds of disposal of a subsidiary HE—FHB AR ERIE 20a 500 -
Proceeds from settlement of available-for-sale EN T E NS A ERS XA
financial assets } 23 498,500 90,500
Decrease in loan receivables EWEZRD 10,000 20,000
Interest received 2 UFI S 6 5,222 4,867
Yield gain on available-for-sale financial assets A E IS A B iR 6 2,837 790
Net cash used in investing activities REXKFMARELFE (149,538) (108,329)
Cash flows from financing activities REXBEAZHERE
Proceeds from government subsidies BN BE A 15 2UE 2,002 11,070
Repayment of bank borrowings EERITER 29 (4,000) -
Repayment of loans from government authority EBEHREER 30 (620) (1,240)
Dividend paid ERRE (33) (326)
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing BMEER(TA) Btz
activities REeRE (2,651) 9,504
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and BEeRASZEEN(ED)/
cash equivalents bopiipet el (28,366) 52,788
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year F£HBE&RRELEEY 183,104 130,316
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ERBERELZEY 154,738 183,104
Analysis of the balance of cash and HERESZEYEHIN
cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances Be MRITHES 154,738 183,104

BEP 2 M AT B MR BRZ — 8D

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

50

B R R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was established as a state-owned enterprise
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) in 1989. On 29
December 1995, under the relevant provisions of the Company
Law of the PRC, the Company was re-organised from a
state-owned enterprise to a limited liability company. On 16
August 1996, with the approval of the Economic Restructuring
Commission of Jilin Province, the Company was further
converted into a joint stock limited company. On 20 April 1999,
the Company made a bonus issue from capitalisation of retained
profits in the proportion of one bonus share for every two
existing shares.

The Company’s H shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market (“GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) on 24 May 2001.

The Company is principally engaged in the manufacture and
distribution of Chinese medicines and pharmaceutical products
in the PRC under the brand names of Changlong and Qing Tong.
The principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 20.

The legal address and the principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the corporate information section to
the annual report.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretation issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong,
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the GEM of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”)
and the applicable requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(b) Basis of preparation

()

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by certain
biological assets measured at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires the management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Note 3.

Changes in the accounting policy and disclosures
In the current year, the Group has applied the following
new and revised Standards, Amendments and
Interpretations (“new and revised HKFRSs”) issued by the
HKICPA that are effective for accounting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2016.

HKAS 1 (Amendments) Disclosure initiative
HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarification of acceptable methods of
(Amendments) depreciation and amortisation
HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 Agriculture: Bearer plants
(Amendments)
HKAS 27 (Amendments) Equity method in separate financial statements
HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual improvement HKFRSs 2012 - 2014 cycle

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28 (Amendments)

Investment entities: Applying the consolidation exeption

HKFRS 14 Regulatory deferral accounts

The application of the new and revised HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the financial
performance and positions of the Company and the Group
for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures
set out in these consolidated financial statements.

2.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

52

B R R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

()

Changes in the accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

New and amended standards have been issued
but are not effective for the financial year
beginning 1 January 2016 and have not been
early adopted
HKAS 7 (Amendments)
HKAS 12 (Amendments)

Statement of cash flow!
Income tax’

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments?
HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers?
HKFRS 16 Leases®

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

o Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

The Group did not early adopt any of these new or revised
HKASs and HKFRSs, amendments and interpretation
to existing HKASs and HKFRSs. The management is
currently assessing the financial impact of these revisions
to the financial performance and positions of the Company
and the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(d) Consolidation
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

(i) Business combination

The Group applies the acquisition method to account
for business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the
fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair value
of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis,
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of
acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
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B R R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UARBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(d) Consolidation (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Business combination (continued)
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-
measured to fair value at the acquisition date; any
gains or losses arising from such re-measurement
are recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the Group is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the
fair value of the contingent consideration that is
deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised in
accordance with HKAS 39 either in profit or loss
or as a change to other comprehensive income.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity
is not remeasured, and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do
not result in loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions — that is, as transactions with
the owners of the subsidiary in their capacity as
owners. The difference between fair value of any
consideration paid and the relevant share acquired
of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary
is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to
non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UARBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(d) Consolidation (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value
at the date when control is lost, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair
value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset.
In addition, any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may
mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the
Company’s balance sheet at cost less impairment.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for the
Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivables.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving dividends from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.
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B R R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(e)

(f)

Biological assets
Biological assets are living animals and plants managed
by the Group which is involved in the agricultural activities
of the transformation of biological assets for sale or into
agricultural product.

Biological assets are measured at fair value less estimated
point-of-sale costs at initial recognition and at each
balance sheet date. The fair value of these biological
assets is determined based on active market prices in the
local market with reference to comparable age, breed and
genetic merit. The gain or loss arising on initial recognition
and subsequent changes in fair values less estimated
point-of-sale costs of biological assets is recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which it arise. Biological
assets that are in the stage of cultivation or do not have
a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured are recognised in the
balance sheet at cost less any impairment losses.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items. Subsequent
costs are included in the assets carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance
are charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their costs or revalued amounts to their residual
value over their estimated useful lives. The assets’ residual
values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. The
principal annual rates are as follows:

Buildings 10 to 30 years
Plant and machinery 6 years
Transportation equipment 8 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5 years
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(f)

(9)

(h)

(i)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gain or loss on the disposal are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Prepaid land lease payments

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases
are initially stated at historical cost and subsequently
recognised on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents buildings, plant and
equipment under construction and pending installation,
and is stated at historical cost less any impairment losses.
No depreciation is made on construction in progress until
such time as the relevant property, plants and equipment
are available for use. Cost comprises all construction
expenditure and other direct costs of construction.
Construction in progress is transferred to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when the asset
being constructed becomes available to use.

Intangible assets

(i) Purchased know-how and prescription
Purchased know-how and prescription are stated
at historical cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses. Amortisation is charged on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives,
which range from 5 to 12 years from the date of
commercial production. The estimated useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each
balance sheet date, with the effect of any changes in
estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.
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B R R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(i)

()

Intangible assets (continued)

(ii) Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised
as an expense in the financial period in which it is
incurred. Expenditure on development activities is
capitalised if the product or process is technically
and commercially feasible and the Group has
sufficient resources and the intention to complete
development. The expenditure capitalised includes
the costs of materials, direct labour, and appropriate
proportion of overheads and borrowing costs, where
applicable. Capitalised development costs are stated
at historical cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses. Amortisation begins when
development is completed and the assets is
available for use. Other development expenditure is
recognised as an expense in the financial period in
which it is incurred.

(iii) Purchased in-process research and development
assets acquired through separate purchase
In-process research and development assets
acquired through separate purchase are recognised
as intangible assets at historical cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.

Amortisation and impairment assessment are
accounted for in a similar manner as internal
development expenditure set out in (ii) above.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for example,
goodwill or intangible assets not ready to use — are
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value
in use. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UARBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average cost formula. The cost of finished goods and work
in progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based on
normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling

(k)

()

expenses.

Financial assets

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and receivables, and available for sale.
The classification depends on the purpose for which
the financial assets were acquired. The management
determines the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition.

(i)

(@)

(b)

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are financial assets held for trading. A
financial asset is classified in this category if
acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the short term. Derivatives are also categorised
as held for trading unless they are designated
as hedges. Assets in this category are classified
as current assets if expected to be settled
within 12 months; otherwise, they are classified
as non-current.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets,
except for the amounts that are settled or
expected to be settled more than 12 months
after the end of the reporting period. These are
classified as non-current assets. The Group’s
loans and receivables comprise “trade and
other receivables”, “loans receivables” and
“cash and cash equivalents” in the balance
sheet.
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B R R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UARBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

() Financial assets (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Classification (continued)

(c) Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current
assets unless the investment matures or the
management intends to dispose of it within 12
months of the end of the reporting period.

Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade-date — the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Investments are initially recognised at fair value
plus transaction costs for all financial assets not
carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss
are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction
costs are expensed in the income statement.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the investments have
expired or have been transferred and the Group
has transferred substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and
receivables are subsequently carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

When securities classified as available-for-sale
are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value
adjustments recognised in equity are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss as “gains and
losses from investment securities”.

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated
using the effective interest method is recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss as part of
other income. Dividends on available-for-sale equity
instruments are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss as part of other income
when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (continued)

BEAETHBERBE (&)

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are
incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a
“loss event”) and that loss event (or events) has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that
the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments, the probability
that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation, and where observable data indicate
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of
the loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the
amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. If a loan or held-to-
maturity investment has a variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss
is the current effective interest rate determined
under the contract. As a practical expedient, the
Group may measure impairment on the basis of an
instrument’s fair value using an observable market
price.
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B R R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

(iii) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised (such as an improvement
in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the
previously recognised impairment loss is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Impairment testing of trade and other receivables is
described in note 3b.

(iv) Assets classified as available-for-sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. For debt securities, the Group uses the
criteria refer to (a) above. In the case of equity
investments classified as available-for-sale, a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of
the security below its cost is also evidence that the
assets are impaired. If any such evidence exists for
available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative
loss — measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognised in consolidated profit or loss is removed
from equity and recognised in the consolidated
profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss on
equity instruments are not reversed through the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. If, in a
subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument
classified as available-for-sale increases and the
increase can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised
in consolidated profit or loss, the impairment loss is
reversed through the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(m) Cash and cash equivalents
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call
with banks, and other short-term highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less, and bank
overdrafts. In the consolidated and entity balance sheet,
bank overdrafts are shown within “bank borrowings” in
current liabilities.

(n) Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, except to the extent that
it relates to items recognised in consolidated other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case, the tax is also recognised in consolidated other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date in the countries where the Company
and its subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income.
The management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax is
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (or laws) that
have been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance
sheet date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.
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B R R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(n)

(0)

Current and deferred income tax (continued)
Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
income taxes assets and liabilities relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the
taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an
intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

Provisions

Provisions for environmental restoration, restructuring
costs and legal claims are recognised when: the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resource
will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount
has been reliably estimated. Restructuring provisions
comprised lease termination penalties and employee
termination payments. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due
to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UARBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(p) Foreign currency translation

(i)

(ii)

Functional and presentation currency

Iltems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Renminbi (“RMB”), which is the Company’s
functional and the Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation
where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, except
when deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow
hedges and qualifying net investment hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss within “finance income or cost”. All other
foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss income
statement within “other gains and/(losses)”. Currency
translation differences arising are recognised in
consolidated other comprehensive income.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in foreign currency classified as
available for sale are analysed between translation
differences resulting from changes in the amortised
cost of the security and other changes in the carrying
amount of the security. Translation differences
related to changes in amortised cost are recognised
in profit or loss, and other changes in carrying
amount are recognised in consolidated other
comprehensive income.
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B R R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UARBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(p) Foreign currency translation (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Transactions and balances (continued)
Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised in consolidated
profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets, such as equities classified as available for
sale, are included in other comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyper-inflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(@) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

(b) income and expenses for each consolidated
statement of profit or loss are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

() all resulting exchange differences
are recognised in consolidated other
comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate. Currency translation differences
arising are recognised in consolidated other
comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(q) Government grants

(r)

Grants from the PRC government are recognised at their
fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with the
attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
over the period necessary to match them with the costs
that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to prepaid land lease payment
and intangible assets are included in non-current liabilities
as deferred income and are credited to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on a straight-line basis over the expected useful
lives of the related assets.

Employee benefits

(i) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognized
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result
of services rendered by employees up to balance
sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognized until the time of leave.
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B R R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(r)

(s)

(t)

Employee benefits (continued)

(ii) Pension obligations
The employees in Mainland China participate in
the defined contribution retirement plans managed
by the local government authorities whereby they
are required to contribute to the schemes at fixed
rates of the employees’ salary costs. The Group’s
contributions to these plans are charged to profit or
loss when incurred.

The Group has no obligations for the payment of the
retirement and other post-retirement benefits of staff
other than the contributions described above.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income over the period of
the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facilities will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that
it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to
which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting
period.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. Trade and other receivables are
recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less provision for impairment. If collection of trade
and other receivables is expected in one year or less (or in
the normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they
are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented
as non-current assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EASTHRBME(E)
POLICIES (continued)

(u) Related parties (u PBEEAL
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: — B AR R BB RAE - i
(@) the party is a person or a close member of that (@ ZIABUTATHEERH
person’s family and that person: & :
(i)  has control or joint control over the Group; (i) 22 1 S S R I AN SR E
(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or (iy HAEEEERTE: X
(i) is a member of the key management personnel (i) ARAEEXAEEFR
of the Group or of a parent of the Group; AMEZEEEKE :
(b) the party is an entity where any of the following (o) ZARFEUTHRENES :
conditions applies:
()  the entity and the Group are members of the i) ZEBRBEKAEEEBR-—
same group (which means that each parent, SEMKE(ASEAR
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the al - M A 7] K R B
others); BA R E AR )
(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the (i) —EAEBAZ—EH8HN
other entity (an associate or joint venture of a BANFHA SR (R
member of a group of which the other entity is BRE—SEHKE N
a member); ERARIHREEME M
ZBE—EBRULTEN
KE)
(iiy  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third (i) MIEEEYRR—
party; TG SR
(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity (iv) *1I,\‘§“7%%_Ef§“§i%
and the other entity is an associate of the third MeEErtERS —EE
party; RE=ZDTEBNBZER
al
(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for (v) EZEE‘EEE$E Elpeat
the benefit of employees of either the Group or REBEBEBABHEEL
an entity related to the Group; E%Zﬂéﬁ&%ﬁ%
‘rEAETE
(vi) the entity controlled or jointly controlled by a (vi) ZZEiﬁff*()jBﬁﬁ§%ﬂJﬂﬁj\
person identified in (a); and TR Sk RIS
(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant (viy R@O)FTHNEERESE
influence over the entity or is a member of the BAREMNATLT  HE
key management personnel of the entity (or of a ER(HERBHNELAA)
parent of the entity). BREEAEBNKER
==
Close members of the family of a person are those family HZATAERZEINRENXE = E
members who may be expected to influence, or be MM EERE ST S5 - i‘ﬁﬁﬁ—f
influence by, that person in their dealings with the entity. EERERATHZZATEEN
KEKE °
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B R R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(v)

(w)

(x)

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods and services
in the ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue
is shown net of value-added tax, returns, rebates and
discounts and after eliminating sales with the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the entity and when specific
criteria have been met for each of the Group’s activities
as described below. The Group bases its estimates on
historical results, taking into consideration the type of
customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each
arrangement.

(i) Sales of goods
Sales revenue is recognised when the merchandise
is delivered and title has been passed to the
customers.

(ii) Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers. Trade payables are classified as
current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less
(or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer).
If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the executive directors that makes strategic
decisions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(y) Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the
Company’s shareholders.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continuously evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are addressed below.

(@) Impairment of assets (other than trade and other
receivables)
The Group tests annually whether assets have suffered
any impairment in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in note 2(j). The recoverable amounts of cash-
generating units have been determined based on value-
in-use calculations. The value-in-use calculation requires
the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to
arise from the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate present value, which has been
prepared on the basis of the management’s assumptions
and estimates.

(b) Impairment of trade and other receivables

Provision for impairment of trade and other receivables
is made based on assessment of the recoverability of
trade receivables and other receivables. The identification
of doubtful debts requires the management judgement
and estimates. Where the actual outcome or expectation
in future is different from the original estimate, such
differences will impact the carrying value of trade
receivables and other receivables and doubtful debt
expenses/written back in the period in which the estimate
has been changed.
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B R R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

()

(d)

Estimation of useful lives of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives and related depreciation or amortisation charges for
its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets.
This estimate is based on the historical experience of the
actual useful lives of property, plant and equipment and
purchase know-how and prescription of similar nature
and functions. It could change significantly as a result of
technical innovations and competitor actions in response
to severe industry cycles. Management will increase the
depreciation or amortisation charge where useful lives are
less than previously estimated lives, or it will write-off or
write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets
that have been abandoned or sold.

Income taxes

The Company is subject to income tax in the PRC.
Significant judgement is required in determining the
provision for income tax. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain. The Company recognises liabilities for
anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the current
and deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the period
in which such determination is made.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

REVENUE

The principal activities of the Group are manufacture and
distribution of Chinese medicines and pharmaceutical products.
Revenue represents the invoiced value of merchandise sold less
allowances for returns, discounts, value-added tax and other
sales related taxes.

WA
AEEZEIBEXBRRERDHETERE
BER - WAEHERRNWERE  ¥E
BMEBREE il - BMEBLEMEE
HREH AN S -

2016 2015
—E—RE —E—AF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ET ARETTT
Sales of Chinese medicines and
pharmaceutical products REER B E MIHE 654,119 539,134

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment information

Information reported to the Executive Directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision-makers (“CODM?”), for the
purpose of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance focuses on type of goods delivered.

The executive directors have identified that, the Group has only
one reportable operating segment, which is the manufacture
and distribution of Chinese medicines and pharmaceutical
products in the PRC. Since this is the only reportable operating
segment of the Group, no further operating segment analysis
thereof is presented.

Geographical information

In addition, the Group’s revenue, expenses, results, assets and
liabilities and capital expenditures are predominantly attributable
to a single geographical region, which is the PRC. Therefore, no
analysis by geographical regions is presented.

Information about major customers

There is no revenue from customers for the years ended 31
December 2016 and 2015 contributed over 10% of the total
operating revenue of the Group.

2 EE R
AEBEFRAENEERN AR NNTE
F OBEIREMAEA(SEERRN

Al REBRSREFEHERRSEH
FER -

HITEZFEZNAEEES —ET2HE
BOER - A% ME— 2 BRR P B BUE N 2 8
RERBEEER - ANENBAAREE
BN —ER2/EL08 - At - WE2
WA *Fié*é%% *ﬁ

i E & R

N REBRHKA BX - #8  BE
FEBEUAREARRAY@ABMHREE—H
& - BNhE o Eit - W2 MR DA o

FRETEEFZEHR
BHE_ZT—R"EER-_ZZ—H2F+=-A
== Eiif NI =Ry S g )
AEEREBEWEBBE10% ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UAREZT)
6. OTHER INCOME 6. HfA
2016 2015
—E—XEF —ZE—hF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
HtaF AR¥T AREBTIT
Recovery of bad debts previously 1 [B] 2 Hif S 52 PR
written off - 1,295
Bank interest income RITH EWA 1,406 2,087
Government subsidies (Note) LR EE ) 102 140
Recognition of deferred income TERIE YA 31 3,849 3,362
Interest income on loans receivables  FEUE FF] B8 A 3,816 2,780
Yield gain on available-for-sale Al EM S EE
financial assets o] 3R = 2,837 790
Reversal of provision for impairment & U & 53R (8 1 {5 2] ¢
of loans receivables 26 2,500 2,816
Others HAth 1,125 10,643
15,635 23,913
Note: During the year ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group received fiet - RBEZZ—R"FR-Z—AF+=-A=1+—
subsidies from various local municipal government bodies in the PRC, BILFE - A& BRES B AR H T BT #
which aimed at the general financing of the business and technology BHNER  BEEAAEBENEBRFEITERIRE
development of the Group. H—PBHES o
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B R R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

7. OTHER GAINS H g 2
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—AF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE— kB AR e 500 -
500 -
8. FINANCE COSTS L E= 2N
2016 2015
—E-XF —E—REF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Interest expenses on loans from BT H#EE R 2 F &
government authority &M 101 89
Interest expenses on long-term EER  RAFAREEE
bank borrowings, wholly repayable RERITEEZFEEA
within five years, unsecured - 120
101 209

TG B REL(CEERNERAR]
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

9. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 9. BRFTERANER
2016 2015
—E-XRF —T—hF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
HtaF AR® TR AREFTT
Profit before income tax for the year is NG JE R BT 1S5 Al A
arrived at after charging/(crediting):— Bk, (Gt A)
TF&IE : —
Cost of inventories sold (excluding BHETERA(TE
additional provision for, and write off of FE IS NNEE A K i
obsolete and slow-moving inventories) BEENEETEE) 127,856 100,224
Provision for obsolete and slow-moving REE MO ETE SR
inventories 22 - 188
Write off of bearer biological assets DREBEYE EMH 16 499 =
Write off of slow-moving inventories Nk R e A= 22 1,558 4,148
Write off of construction in progress TEE T2 hies 19 8,537 -
Impairment loss on trade receivables EWE 5 RN BB
BE 24 8,286 24,720
Impairment loss on other receivables, HibERIE - 5@
deposit and prepayment RIBNFRIBZ
VZRI=YSE 25 95 189
Auditor’s remuneration:— ZEEMEN S © —
Provision for the year FNRE 274 252
Over-provision in prior years BEFEHBBEEE - (26)
Amortisation of intangible assets E A EEE
(included in cost of sales) (B ASEERKZA) 21 659 1,860
Research and development cost & H 278 1,518
Amortisation of prepaid land lease TR 307 2 HE 8
payments (included in cost of sales) (H ASHER ) 18 454 453
Depreciation of property, plant VI - RE KRR
and equipment e 17 18,322 16,233
Employee benefits expenses and human  ETEMEBAR AN
resources cost (excluding directors’ and BIREKA (TN BIEE
supervisors’ remuneration): ENEEME) :
Salaries and allowances e K2R 28,448 12,852
Sales Commission *%aHe 126,817 113,910
Pension scheme contributions RIS FH SRR 2,554 1,620
Loss on disposal of property, LEME  BEX
plant and equipment REEE 12 60
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

(a)

10. FIEB < i

Income tax represents: IRl aE
2016 2015
—E-RE —ZE—hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARETTT
PRC enterprise income tax R TS
— Current year —RNEEZ 24,420 21,659
— Underprovision/(Overprovision) —BAFEREBEIR
in prior years (FREEREE) 276 (1,608)
Deferred taxation (Note 32) RFERIA (Ha£32) (81) 88
24,615 20,144

The PRC enterprise income tax is provided according to
the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC.

On 16 March 2007, the National People’s Congress
approved the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, which
became effective from 1 January 2008. In accordance with
the new tax law, an unified enterprise income tax rate of
25% is applied to both domestic-invested enterprises and
foreign- invested enterprises.

On 17 September 2015, the Company was accredited
as a “National New and High-tech Enterprise” by the
Jilin Provincial Science and Technology Bureau (F#%&
Rl 17E2) and is entitled to a reduced PRC Enterprise
Income tax rate of 15% for the three consecutive years
commenced since year 2015.

REREMSHLRIESEABE
BRIER R o

RZBZLF=A+B - 2BA
REFHAETECEMETE - A
—EENEF-F-HBEM - RIE
ML TBERENRINEDELS
— R K% BN RS

ARARARZZE—HEFNAT+LEE
EMERBRMERAS [BREHE
Ml ARAN - —AFEF
BEE-FURRETEEERSEHR
KE16%HMNTBLIA
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B R R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and

. FRB B ()

(b) BIEXHESHEINRBARE

accounting profit at applicable tax rate: HERWT
2016 2015
—E-RE —ET—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
Profit before income tax K TS5 B A 167,285 137,782
National tax calculated at PRC BB EMSHE15%

enterprise income tax rate of 15% (ZE—AF : 15%)

(2015: 15%) STEABIT 25,093 20,668
Tax effect of non-taxable income BARGBANTE B E (673) -
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 7~ A] 15 5 & By Fi 7% 52 28 - 991
Underprovision/(Overprovision) BREFEEBETR/

in prior years (FRZER ) 276 (1,608)
Deferred tax on temporary differences @1+ 5 [E &k Z %5

in prior year EEFIIR (81) 88
Income tax expense Frf5fisk 24,615 20,144
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B R R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

11.

12.

13.

EARNINGS PER SHARE
The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended
31 December 2016 is based on the profit attributable to
owners of the Group for the year of RMB142,670,000 (2015:
RMB117,638,000) and 560,250,000 shares in issue during the
year (2015: 560,250,000 shares).

Diluted earnings per share is not presented as there were no
dilutive potential ordinary shares in existence during the years
ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF
THE COMPANY

Profit attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2016 includes a profit of RMB131,055,000 (2015:
RMB118,225,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company (Note 34).

DIVIDENDS

No final dividend has been proposed or paid by the Company in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil).

11.

12.

13.

BREF
HE-Z—ARE+-A=+—RHILEE -
BREARFTIBEFAREBE RS AR
155% A AR #142,670,000c (=2 —H
£ AR¥117,638,0007T) R FE A E &
17 I& £ 560,250,000 f& ( — & — F 4
560,250,0000% )5+ & -

HREBE—ZT—R"FR-_FT—AF+_H
St RLEFEYEBEABEERR - &K
WEZSGREEEAN -

RRRER ARG ET

HE—Z—AFE+-_A=+—RHILFE
N AREEAABIGEEFSEEFAR
#131,065,000 T (ZE—FHE : ARK
118,225,0007t) » ZHMER AR F 2
B TSR P R IR (M 5E34) -

RE
AARTTRBEXRRNEE-_T—RF
+—A=t—BIEE 2 FaRBARE (=
T—RF )
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ 14. EERSRITHRAEMS
REMUNERATION

(a) Directors’ remuneration (@ E=M2
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant FR - BIBAIER EMRARES
to the GEM Listing Rules and section 383 of the Hong CREER ) (F622F ) 538315 K&
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) and Part 2 of the (RRI(BBEESF=ER) RO FE2
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of B2 REMBRNEEMEAT

Directors) Regulation is as follows:

2016 —E—RE
Salaries,
allowances
and other Pension
Directors’ benefits Discretionary fund 2016 Total
fees  EHd - 2l bonus contributions < —Z—XE
EEHe REMFE MERL  BARSHX BMe

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE AR®TR ARETR ARETR ARETR

(Note (i)
(Hizt())
Executive Directors: HITEE
Zhang Hong (Chairman) ~ 3R3A(E/E) - 335 199 - 534
Zhang Xiao Guang REX - 233 99 11 343
Zhao Bao Gang HE M - 183 44 26 253
Wu Guo Wen REX - 54 170 11 235
Independent Non-Executive BV IHTEE -
Directors:
Gao Yong Cai SKA - - - - -
Tian Jie iR - - - - -
Qiu Fang Ping il P - - - - -
- 805 512 48 1,365
Note: (i) A discretionary bonus is recommended by the Kt () BEEARTNEESHRE
Remuneration Committee and is approved by the board of BE - THESE2EARE
directors, having determined with reference to the Group’s BlEEEE MARBRRA
operating results, individual performance and comparable B BRTISEIBRERE

market statistics.
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B R R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ 14. EERSRITHAESHE (&)
REMUNERATION (continued)

(a) Directors’ remuneration (continued) (a) EEB< (&)
2015 —E—-HF
Salaries,
allowances
and other Pension

Directors’ benefits  Discretionary fund 2015 Total

fees & 2B bonus  contributions < ZE—FF

ESe  RAMIS BBEA BREHR ae

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AREBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT

(Note (i)
(FzEG))
Executive Directors: HITEE
Zhang Hong (Chairman) ~ R3L(£/E) - 295 583 12 890
Zhang Xiao Guang Bk - 209 265 9 483
Zhao Bao Gang HER - 164 158 43 365
Wu Guo Wen REX = 5 157 9 221
Independent Non-Executive BV IHTEE -
Directors:
Gao Yong Cai SKA - - 13 - 13
Tian Jig® B - - 13 - 13
Qiu Fang Ping" iitfzpedll - - 13 - 13
= 723 1,202 73 1,998
) appointed on 25 June 2015 0 R-TE—FENA-_+HBERT
Note: (i) A discretionary bonus is recommended by the M () MIEEAHFMNES SR
Remuneration Committee and is approved by the board of EH T HEEFSEREARE
directors, having determined with reference to the Group’s ERess  BMARBERA
operating results, individual performance and comparable B EMISEIBEREBTE -

market statistics.
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B R R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ 14. EERSRITHAESME (&)
REMUNERATION (continued)

(b) Senior executives’ remuneration (b) BRITHAEME
Details of remuneration paid to the Supervisors of the REFERARASESZ N 2Me
Company which were all below HK$1,000,000 (equivalent KR 1,000,000 T(REBE=Z
to RMB856,000 for the year ended 31 December 2016 —RNE+_A=T—HLEFERE
and RMB838,000 for the year ended 31 December 2015) RARYS856,000c KRB E-Z
are as follows:— —hF+ZA=+—RHIFEHEE
M AR #838,0007T) @ HFfEW
=
2016 —E—XRHF
Salaries,
allowances
and other
benefits Discretionary Pension fund 2016 Total
F2ac =13 bonus contributions —E-RE
REMFIR MERA  EBARESER “ape

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRE ARETR AR®TR ARETR

(Note (i)
(RE0)

Supervisors: e

Li Bao Hai® z/50 23 - 2 25

Wang Ying Xu') FEB 30 - 7 37

Wu Wei Men SRR 7 22 6 99

Zhao Gang!” itz ] 116 44 11 171

240 66 26 332

M appointed on 16 June 2016. - Rom B REEE

@ resigned on 19 May 2016. @ RoZ—AEH A+ A BT -

Note: (i) A discretionary bonus is recommended by the Remuneration BaE < () MIBEABnFMEE SR
Committee and is approved by the board of directors, EE WHEESR=EARE
having determined with reference to the Group’s operating Eases AARBERA
results, individual performance and comparable market B R ATIE IR AT o

statistics.
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B R R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’

REMUNERATION (continued)

(b) Senior executives’ remuneration (continued)

14. EERSRITRAEME (F)

(b) BRITHAEME(H)

2015 —E-hF
Salaries,
allowances
and other
benefits  Discretionary  Pension fund 2015 Total
e o =Eh bonus contributions < —Z—H4%
REMFE BIETEAL  RIKEHEN e
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT AR%®TT ARET:T
(Note (i)
(BEEG))
Supervisors: o
Zhang Jing Zhou" oM = = = =
Li Bao Hai Z80 55 = 5 60
Wu Wei Men RRE 65 - 6 71
120 - 11 131
M resigned on 19 May 2016. ) RoZ—AEREFAHEE -
Note: (i) A discretionary bonus is recommended by the Remuneration Kt () BISEARTMEESHRE

Committee and is approved by the board of directors,

having determined with reference to the Group’s operating

results, individual performance and comparable market

statistics.
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B R R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’

REMUNERATION (continued)

(c) Five highest paid individuals
The five highest paid individuals during the year included
four Directors (2015: three Directors) whose remuneration
is set out in (a) above. Details of remuneration of
the remaining one (2015: two) highest paid, non-
director employee whose remuneration were all below
HK$1,000,000 (equivalent to RMB856,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2016 and RMB838,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2015) are as follows:

14. EERSRITRAEME (F)

(c)

TEBRSEFMAL
FREHREBTHALRE4ZE
E(ZE—AF :3KEFH) - Hl
SHBER EX@#EKT - B 0 &K
SEHEMIEERSTMEESES
(ZE—FF : 28) 2HFHMHER
1,000,000 L (B E - T — " &F
+Z A=+ BLEEEHSENAR
856,000 T hEHE -—E—RFE+=
A=+ —BLEFEHSERARYE
838,0007T) * HEFMFELT

2016 2015
—E—RE —E—FE
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREF T ARBF T

Salaries, allowances and other benefits 4 - 285 & H fth Fzs 192 532
Pension scheme contributions RIRE B - 26
192 558

Other than the emoluments of directors disclosed in
(a) above, the emoluments of supervisors and other
senior management whose profiles are included in the
Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
section of this report were below HK$1,000,000,
equivalent to RMB856,000 (2015: equivalent to
RMB838,000) for the year ended 31 December 2016 and
for the year ended 31 December 2015.

During the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to these highest paid
employees as an inducement to join, or upon joining the
Group, or as compensation for loss of office.
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B R R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

15.

16.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Defined contribution retirement plans

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the
PRC, the Group participate in a defined contribution retirement
benefit scheme (the “Scheme”) organised by the PRC municipal
government authority in the Jilin Province whereby the Group
is required to make contributions to the Scheme at certain-
percentage of the eligible employees’ relevant salaries. The
local government authority is responsible for the entire pension
obligation payable to retired employees.

The Group’s contribution to retirement benefits schemes for the
year ended 31 December 2016 amounted to RMB2,627,000
(2015: RMB1,705,000). The Group has no other material
obligation for the payment of pension benefits associated with
the Scheme.

15.

RKEFIET S

EFEMH TR KT &
REBETERBESSHRA LR - AEE2
S8 Py R B 7 AR T T G B AR A E R A
FORREFGEI ([T 8)) - Bt - A%
BAZAEREEMMABEIEN —EaD
LRz ET B ER © 3077 R A4 B8 349 FE A+ IR
REEMZEERSHERETAR

RBE-_ZT-—R"F+-_HA=t—HLF
B - AEBF R ARBNGEHAIR
AR#%2,627,000L(—F—HF : ARK
1,705,0007T) » AEE EH A1 B B %At
ZINERRKENNREE -

BEARER BIOLOGICAL ASSETS 16. TREBEMEE
Bearer biological assets comprise: TRBEMEERTRE :
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—AEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARET T
Ginseng, at cost A2 BAE 10,844 5,058
Vineyard, at cost BE 0 BRAE - 499
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ A=+—HZKEA 10,844 5,557

TG B REL(CEERNERAR]
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B R R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

16. BEARER BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (continued) 16. FTEBEMEE (&)

Reconciliation of carrying amounts of bearer biological assets: TREZEYEERTESR :
2016 2015
—E-AE —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TF T ARBF R

Ginseng A2
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZEAE 5,058 4,670
Additions during the year FARE 5,786 388
Carrying amount at 31 December RTZA=T—RBZKEE 10,844 5,058
Vineyard 88
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—HBZERmEAE 499 499
Written off (Note 9) WhsH (HfaE9) (499) -
Carrying amount at 31 December RTZA=T—RZKEE - 499
10,844 5,667
The carrying amounts of ginseng and vineyard were valued A2 KB E N REERNBKAE © %
at their original costs. These assets are in their early stage of SEERNEBREBE - B0 mERE
cultivation and preparation and active market prices are not M{E o B ESRBIIBAA A HEEE
available. In addition, the Directors are of the view that the RiZEREE 2 AFERE

original costs would approximate their fair values at this stage of
their development.
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B SR 2R M EE
(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAAEBZT)
17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. Y% - BERZE
Furniture,
fixtures and
Plant and Transportation equipment
Buildings ~ machinery  equipment  {FfE  #£E Total
BF RBERMESE ERRE e @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTE ARETT ARETT AR%TR
Cost: XA -
At 1 January 2015 RZZE—A%F—H—H 109,936 86,807 5,625 2,254 204,622
Transfer from construction ZEETR2E A (f75£19)
in progress (Note 19) - 279 - - 279
Additions R 5,819 907 - 67 6,793
Disposals & - (4,937) (183) = (5,120)
At 31 December 2015 R-E-—RF+-A=1+—H 115,755 83,056 5,442 2,321 206,574

Transfer from construction  7Ei2 Ti28 A (#/:#19)

in progress (Note 19) 35,179 11,612 607 - 47,398
Additions 1R 127 6,721 24 1,750 8,622
Disposals & - (3,559) (47) - (3,600)
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RE+ZA=+—H 151,061 97,830 6,026 4,071 258,988
Accumulated depreciation: Z:H7E :

At 1 January 2015 R-ZE-HF—A—H 25,983 31,504 2,027 801 60,315
Charge for the year (Note 9) &R 85 (fi319) 3,259 11,946 626 402 16,233
Written back on disposals 1 & #T] = @,777) (183) - (4,960)
At 31 December 2015 R-ZE—R4+-A=+—H 29,242 38,673 2,470 1,203 71,588
Charge for the year (Note 9) £ A% 84 (fi1:29) 4,191 12,875 508 748 18,322
Written back on disposals & #[a] - (3,550) (44) - (3,594)
At 31 December 2016 R-Z—NE+-A=1—FH 33,433 47,998 2,934 1,951 86,316
Carrying amount: REE:

At 31 December 2016 R-E—A"E+-A=1—H 117,628 49,832 3,092 2,120 172,672
At 31 December 2015 RZE—RF+-A=1+—H 86,513 44,383 2,972 1,118 134,986

EHRARERELCEEROERAT 67
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B R R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

18. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 18. A LHEE

RMB’000
ARETTT
Cost: AR
At 1 January 2015, 31 December 2015 RZE—RF—A—H ZFT—RAF+=A
and 31 December 2016 =t+—RAERZE-—R"E+-A=+—H 19,785
Accumulated amortisation: RS
At 1 January 2015 RZZE—RF—A—H 2,450
Charge for the year (Note 9) FRZHE (A EE9) 453
At 31 December 2015 N-_ZE—hFE+_A=+—8H 2,903
Charge for the year (Note 9) FNZH(HTEF9) 454
At 31 December 2016 R-E—XRF+_A=+—8 3,357
Carrying amount: IRMEE ¢
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RFETZA=+—H 16,428
At 31 December 2015 R-_E—RAFE+_A=+—8H 16,882
2016 2015
— A —E2-hfF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T AR®F T
Carrying amount at 31 December R+—A=+—HKEAE 16,428 16,882
Portion classified as current assets DEEREEE D (454) (454)
Portion classified as non-current assets DEAERDEEZID 15,974 16,428

The above medium-term land use rights are located in the PRC. LA _E AR BA + 3 56 AR A S AL R AR R o

The Group recognised the amount as the carrying amount of AEBEERZcBAEBREEZERER
the relevant assets and will transfer this to profit or loss over the B TERtHHEEZAFEHRNEBE
useful lives of the land leases. Ei ki)
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B R R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UARKEZT)
19. CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 19. EEIRE
2016 2015
—EB-RF —2-hfF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR¥ET
At 1 January n—H—H 74,557 66,781
Additions 1A 4,649 8,055
Transfer to property, plant and equipment BB « E LR
(Note 17) (HiaE17) (47,398) (279)
Written off 5 (8,537) -
At 31 December nNt+=—_A=+—H 23,271 74,557
20. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES 20. RMBARIMKRE
The Company
VNN
2016 2015
—E-RE —E-EHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARET T
Unlisted investment, at cost JEETIRE IR ANE 25,000 25,500
Amounts due to subsidiaries NN EENGIE ] 24,721 24,660

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2016 were as
follows:—

Country of incorporation

RZB-—XRE+TZA=+—0 WEAA
BT —

Percentage of

and operation and ordinary shares Principal
Name of companies legal entity status held directly activity
AR R BEERSE
AT BB EEBERM Bokk ETEEK
Jilin Province Medicinal Plants PRC, limited liability company 100% Dormant
Trading Company Limited T 4 S &)
EMEMTEREELERLE B BREEAA
EMEREFHEREGRAR PRC, limited liability company 100% Dormant
e BREEAR] EE O )

The amounts due to subsidiaries classified as current liabilities in
the Company’s balance sheet are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

ENMBRARREBEREARNRTAEEAR
RZnBEE  REER . RERZEX

BE -

TG B REL(CEERNERAR]
ZE—NFFR
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B R R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

20. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 20. AMiBARMNIKRE (&)

(a) Disposal of a subsidiary (2 HEHWEARF
During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group HZE2016F12A31HIEFE » A%
disposed of a subsidiary. Net assets of the subsidiary BHE—ENBAR - ZEHEW
being disposed of at the date of disposal were as follows: BRAEIRNEERBMcEEFENT ¢

Jilin Province
Huinan Changlong
Pharmacy Trading
Company Limited

EMAERERE

BREMERF

RMB’000

ARETIT

Total assets BEE -

Total liabilities HaE -

Net assets BESE -

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & — KB A m e 500

Total consideration BRE 500
Net cash inflow arising from disposal: HEEAMRSRAERE :

Cash consideration HEREB 500
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B R R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

21. B EE

Purchased

in

Purchased rese

know-how and

-process
arch and

development

prescription assets
B8 A B9 )2 BEETT Total
E- ] MREE Fb
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFIT ARET T ARETTT
Cost: 2%
At 1 January 2015 R-ZE—HF—H—H 67,975 - 67,975
Additions 3840 — _ _
Disposal HeE - _ _
At 31 December 2015 RZZE—HF
—_A=+—H 67,975 - 67,975
Additions N = - -
Disposal ) es - _ _
At 31 December 2016 RZZE—RF
+=H=+—H 67,975 - 67,975
Accumulated amortisation and iR EEES !
impairment loss:
At 1 January 2015 N-_E—hHFE—H—H 65,456 - 65,456
Amortisation charge (Note 9) BGH S (K729) 1,860 = 1,860
Write back on disposal i 5 [o] 48 = - -
Impairment (Note 9) WAE(H1zF9) = - -
At 31 December 2015 R-ZZE—RHF
+=—A=1+—H 67,316 = 67,316
Amortisation charge (Note 9) BOES M (FY7E9) 659 - 659
Write back on disposal o [B] 5 - - -
Impairment (Note 9) BB (KT7£9) - - -
At 31 December 2016 R-ZT—K
—A=+—H 67,975 - 67,975
Carrying amount: BRMEIE :
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RF
+=—A=+—8H = = -
At 31 December 2015 RZZE—RF
+=—A=+—-H 659 = 659

EMEEEREACEEROHERAH

ZE—NFFR
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B R R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

21.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Purchased know-how and prescription were acquired through
research and development cooperation with independent third
parties and were all acquired in cash.

During the year, the Directors reviewed the carrying amount of
the purchased know-how and prescription based on the future
economic benefits generated from these assets. No impairment
loss was recognised for the current year (2015: Nil).

Purchased in-process research and development assets
represent costs incurred by third parties for the development
of new products, including cost of clinical experiments and
tests conducted. Due to the inherent uncertainties associated
with these purchased in-process research and development
projects, the associated expenditure incurred is particularly at
risk of impairment if the successful eventual commercialisation
of the projects becomes doubtful. The Directors have reviewed
the carrying amount of these purchased in-process research
and development assets and consider that there are no
indications of impairment as at 31 December 2016 and 2015.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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B R R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

22. INVENTORIES 22. 78
2016 2015
—E-XF —E—AF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T ARBT T
Raw materials R 15,702 11,122
Work in progress R 7,789 14,948
Finished goods U am 3,710 5,811
27,201 31,881
Less: Provision for obsolete and o EEE NS IET SR
slow-moving inventories (1,146) (3,117)
26,055 28,764
During the year ended 31 December 2016, no provision HEZZT—AF+ZA=+—RHIEFE
on obsolete and slow-moving inventories was made (2015: WERNEERBEFEEEEH (T -1
provision on obsolete and slow-moving inventories amounted to F : {EH AR 188,0007T 2 BE3E R $H1F
RMB188,000). ERERE) -
During the year ended 31 December 2016, certain obsolete HE_ZT—R"F+-A=T—HLFE "
and slow-moving inventories amounted to RMB1,558,000 were EfE A R #1,558,0007T B8 I Rk #8517
written off (2015: RMB4,148,000). BEHME(ZZ—1F - AR#%4,148,000
JT) e
During the year ended 31 December 2016, obsolete and slow- HE-_ZT—R"F+-_A=T—HILFE "
moving inventories amounted to 1,971,000 which the provision B R LARTEE (EH AR #1,971,0007T #
were already made in prior years, were written off (2015: HHEEE BT E R B A FE (M

RMB668,000).

(Z=2—A1%F : AR¥668,0007T) °

TG B REL(CEERNERAR]
ZE—NFFR
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B R R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

23. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS  23.

AfHERKERE
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—AF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETT

Unlisted financial instruments, at cost FELMEETAR - IZKANE

At 1 January w—A—H 154,500 30,000
Additions i 647,540 215,000
Settlements Ak (498,500) (90,500)
At 31 December A= R = e 303,540 154,500

As at 31 December 2016, the above unlisted financial
instruments represented the Group’s subscriptions of
303,540,000 units with RMB303,540,000 redeemable
investment products linked to highly liquid assets such as bonds
and deposits (2015: RMB154,500,000).

The directors consider that there were no impairment provisions
on available-for-sale financial assets and the carrying values
approximate the fair values as at 31 December 2016 and 2015.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the
carrying value of the unlisted financial instruments.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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MWR-_BE—RE+-_A=+—8 - Lttt
FEETHBEITAEEAEBMRABEN
303,540,000 i1 & # A R #303,540,000
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WAIBOEMER(CZE—0F : ARK
154,500,0007T) °
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B R R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

24. TRADE RECEIVABLES . EREZ R
2016 2015
—E-RF —T—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBET T AREET T
Trade receivables FEUE SR 310,791 244,875
Less: Provision for impairment B B RS (41,088) (32,802)
Trade receivables — net FEUE AR — 5 269,703 212,073

(i)

(i)

The Group’s policy is to allow an average credit period of
180 days to its trade customers.

The movements in the provision for impairment for
doubtful debts during the year, including both specific and
collective loss components, are as follows:

TEBBERRHE TESEP TFH180
BziEES -

FARFRERBNEY (BESTE
REBEBRIDWT

2016 2015

—E—RF —ET—AF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R AR¥BT T

At 1 January R—HA—H 32,802 8,082
Additional provision (Note 9) @& (B :29) 8,286 24,720
At 31 December Nt+t=—HB=+—H 41,088 32,802

Provision for doubtful debts had been made for the
estimated irrecoverable amounts arising from the sale of
goods. The provision was determined by the directors with
reference to past default experience.

REBREDRHEEM 2B TA
WESHEEL - EFEE2ZBEH
REHBEERRBE BT -

TG B REL(CEERNERAR]
ZE—NFFR
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B R R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 24, EREZRF(1E)
(i) The ageing analysis of trade receivables, based on the (i) MREZZAHRMBREWKE SRR
invoice date and net of provision for impairment of trade WERE  EREZERDERR D

receivables, is as follows: HranT :
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—AF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Current ENER 34,671 34,761
31-90 days 31-90H 44,333 50,152
91-180 days 91-180H 54,146 30,521
More than 180 days BiB180H 136,553 96,639
269,703 212,073
(iv) The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are neither (v) WEERkEBEERAENERE
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as SRR DTAT ¢
follows:
2016 2015
—E—XRF —ET—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBT T
Neither past due nor impaired 37 4 580 B ok Rk (B 133,150 115,434
Less than 1 month past due DR —E AR 27,818 6,590
1 to 3 months past due AH—Z=={EA 30,757 10,592
Over 3 months past due 10 BAEA 8 = (I A 77,978 79,457
269,703 212,073
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B R R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

25.

24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 24, EWWE SR (E)
(iv) (continued) (iv) (&)
Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired B s B R E R E IR E 5 R
relate to a wide range of customers for whom there was no REWHET R R GRSE 2 B EA -
recent history of default.
Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired AHEERENEKE ZRHES
relate to a number of independent customers that have HBARFPER  ZEREFHAE
a good track record with the Group. Based on past BN EELHREY - BREBEL
experience, the management believes that no impairment B BEERL  ZEEKTAR
is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not B RERGEEXTEERNE
been a significant change in credit quality and the balances g BESRDEEENT2E8KRD -
are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not REEN ERZFERFEERR -
hold any collateral over these balances.
(v} The Directors consider the carrying amount of trade vy ESRAE BEREZERZEHRE
receivables approximates their fair value. HENTERSE -
OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 25. HftfEWFIE - 52 RFENFIE
PREPAYMENTS
2016 2015
—E—XKEF —ZT—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBT T
Deposits and prepayments, net Al RTENFIE  FEE 2,957 3,163
Advances to staff, net B T#K - F5 752 1,329
Other receivables, net Hh YRR - R 14,616 10,005
Bills receivables el EiE 74,680 69,915
93,005 84,412

During the year, no provision for impairment on deposits and
prepayments was made (2015: Nil).

FR - WEHAFT S RN FORFELIRER
W T —0F:E)-

TG B REL(CEERNERAR]
ZE—NFFR
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B R R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

25. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 25. HttfEWRIE « S € RFANKE

PREPAYMENTS (continued)

At 31 December 2016 and 2015, certain of the Group’s
advances to staff and other receivables were determined to
be impaired. The impaired receivables related to staff and
debtors that were in financial difficulties and the management
assessed that only a portion of the receivables is expected to be
recovered. Consequently, the following provisions for doubtful
debts have been made.

(&)
REE—ARER_T-—AF+_H=1—
B AKRERE TRNHETHALEM
FEURIAREE R RE - ZFCRERN
P& W R TR A B B T B BRI B O B T AN S R
AFR - BEEMERARDD BKRFRE
HAmTYE] o Rtk B B ARARAEH A T B o

Advanced to staff Other receivables
BETH H bR IE

2016 2015 2016 2015
—E-RFE ZT—hF ZE-XRF —_T—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARETT AR®TRT ARETT
Gross amounts B 4,657 5,234 17,675 12,969
Less: Provision for impairment 5 : i {E#E & (3,905) (3,905) (3,059) (2,964)
Net amounts FER 752 1,329 14,616 10,005

The Group does not hold any collateral over the above balances.
The movement in the provisions for impairment of advances
to staff and other receivables during the year, including both
specific and collective loss components, is as follows:

N6 B M R UL S AR R R (AR R e
FAIR B T 2R &% E A BRI E B &
MER(BRFELRSBEBERIED)NT

2016 2015
—E—RE —ET—AF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARWT T ARETT

At 1 January w—HA—H 6,869 6,680
Addition provision (Note 9) N (AT E9) 95 189
At 31 December Nae=H=-1F—H 6,964 6,869
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B R R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

26. LOANS RECEIVABLES

26. EWER

Loans receivables due within 1 year
Interest receivable
Less: Provision for impairment

R—FRBH 2 BKRER
FE N 2
B ORE R

Loans receivables due within 1 year — net

R—FEREHz REER—F5E

2016 2015
—E—REF —ET—AF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR¥ET T
15,000 25,000

- 631

(10,000) (13,131)
5,000 12,500

()  Loans of aggregate sum of RMB5,000,000 (2015: (i)
RMB10,000,000) due from an independent third party is
secured, bears interest at 7.8% per annum (2015: 7.8%
per annum) and, following their renewal, will be repaid

within the next twelve months.

(i) Loans of aggregate sum of RMB10,000,000 (2015: (if)
RMB10,000,000) due from an independent third party
is unsecured, interest free (2015: Nil) and, following its
renewal, will be repaid within the next twelve months.

BRBIE=THNEREBBARE
5,000,000 (ZZF—HF : ARK
10,000,0007% ) BB A - IREH|H
78EFB(ZZE—HF : 7.8EFE)
LESEENAK T @A REE -

BRBYE=FHNERRBRBEARE
10,000,0007T(=ZZF—HF : ARH
10,000,000t ) A&EEF - £ 5 (=
T—RAF  E) RBHEARKK
+ZEAREE -

TG B REL(CEERNERAR]
ZE—NFFR

59



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

26. LOANS RECEIVABLES (continued)

(i)  During the year ended 31 December 2016, loan of
RMB5,000,000 due from an independent third party was
repaid without settlement of interest. Certain interest
receivables amounted to RMB631,000, which the
provision were already made in prior years, were written off
during the year (2015: RMB1,510,000).

26. EWWER (&)

(i)

HE-_ZT—XR"E+-A=+—H81t
FE EERE—EBBILE=ZFN
B AR¥S5,000,0007T © 1M A& &5 F
B o WA 249 A R 631,000
JC B R LA AT R E 1E R E B I
RERMBE(ZE—HF : AR
1,510,0007T) °

(iv)  The movements in the specific provision for impairment for ivy FABEREREEENESHN
doubtful debts during the year are as follows: T 5

2016 2015

—E—RE —E—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%ET AREBTIT

At 1 January w—A—H 13,131 17,457
Reversal (Note 6) 8 (fiat6) (2,500) (2,816)
Written off 31 55 (631) (1,510)

At 31 December A= R = e 10,000 13,131
(vy The Directors consider the carrying amount of loans vy EZRAE BREFRZEREEHE

receivables approximates their fair value.
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B R R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

27.

28.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances comprise cash held by the Group
and short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less. The directors consider the carrying amount of
these assets approximates their fair value.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s cash and bank balances
denominated in RMB amounted to RMB154,738,000 (2015:
RMB183,104,000). The RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks

27.

RERBEEEEY
ReRBTEBOEFEARERS KR
BHEA=EARUTZEBRITER -
EERA LEAEZREEREATE
1B

RZFE—A"F+=ZA=+—H £&H
NARBHEZRSRRBITEHRBAR
154,738,000 (ZE— R FE : ARK
183,104,0007T) - AR TEER LA
Hab W - A RIBPBAREZIMNEE
BHRTE REEERMNETERTE A%
s S REREETINEER 2 RITH

authorised to conduct foreign exchange business. ARBHBMBEMEE -
TRADE PAYABLES 28. ERHEZ RN
The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on the invoice INTAEREZHHNENE ZERRAER
date, is as follows: BT -
2016 2015
—E-RE —hHFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREFTT
Current BNEA 3,838 4,520
31-90 days 31-90H 9,376 4,396
Over 90 days @m0 H 18,484 12,941
31,698 21,857
The average credit period from the Group’s trade creditors is 90 AREBESEEAZFHEERAOEZ
to 180 days. 180H °

Trade payables principally comprise amounts outstanding for
trade purchases. The directors consider the carrying amount of
trade payables approximates their fair value.

e E 583 ?EE&%E%EL’L@%E%
EERRENESERZEAEEELA
BHE%E -

N

TG B REL(CEERNERAR]
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B R R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UAAEBZT)
29. BANK BORROWINGS 29. SRITEE
2016 2015
—EB-RE —ZT—AF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARBT T
Long-term bank borrowings, RHARITEE RAFREE -
wholly repayable within five years, IR
unsecured - 4,000
Less: Amounts due within one year B AARBAEEET
included under current liabilities AR —FANERNIA - 4,000
Non-current portion IEMmBNEB (9 - -
Notes: Kzt -
(a) The Group’s bank borrowings are repayable as follows: (a) AEBRITEER TIIHREEER
2016 2015
—E-XREF —E—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%FR ARBF T
Within one year —&FR - 4,000
After one year but within two years R—FEZERFA - =
After two years but within five years RAFRERFA - =
- 4,000
(b) The effective interest rates of bank borrowings at the end of the reporting (o) RIS RBITEETRRENT ¢

period are as follows:

2016 2015

—E-RF —ZT—hF

Long-term bank borrowings, wholly repayable RERITEE RAFAER - 3.0% per annum
within five years, unsecured A - FEFR3.0E
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B R R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

30. LOANS FROM GOVERNMENT AUTHORITY 30.

31.

Loans were obtained from Huinan County Finance Bureau
for the purpose of research and development activities of the
Group. The loans are unsecured and bear interest at one year
term saving interest rate promulgated by The People’s Bank
of China plus 0.3% per annum. The loans are repayable by
instalments until July 2022 as follows:

B #EE

IR S BB L B A S B MR
A ZEERAREER  BRPEAR
MITHEME —FHREEFENOIEMNF
FIEREFE - ZEERERTINGFARZE
ZZF+ AR D EIERE :

2016 2015
—E—RE —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARWTF T ARETT

Within one year —FRN 697 682
After one year but within two years R—FEEMENRN 635 635
After two years but within five years RRFEERFRN 1,638 1,907
After five years RAFE - 366
2,970 3,590

DEFERRED INCOME 31. EEYWA
2016 2015
=EB-AF e
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREFT
At 1 January n—HA—H 29,812 21,444
Arising from government grants R BT BD 1,900 11,730
Credited to profit or loss (Note 6) KB WIEE (A:16) (3,849) (3,362)
At 31 December RNt+=—A=+—H 27,863 29,812
Carrying amount at 31 December Rt+t-_A=+—HEAEE 27,863 29,812
Portion classified as current liabilities AREARBEE N (1,949) (1,949)
Portion classified as non-current liabilities 9548 &IERE & E2B{D 25,914 27,863

During the year ended 2016, the Group received government
grants of approximately RMB1,900,000 (2015: RMB11,730,000)
from Jilin Province Finance Bureau and Huinan County
Finance Bureau in relation to support investments on plant and
equipment further research and development of the Group’s
intangible assets.

AEBER S —NFRESEMNEHEE
MEBRZTBBH Y FAEBOKE K&
HERENER EEIFE—SHEZBNH
B AR¥1,900,000t(ZZ—HF : AR
#11,730,0007T) °

TG B REL(CEERNERAR]
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B R R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UAAEBZT)
32. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 32. EEMIBEAE
The movements during the year in the deferred tax liabilities are FRRELHIBEAENEFHNAT
as follows:
2016 2015
—B-RF —TRF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMTF T ARETT

At 1 January R—H—H 327 239
(Credited)/charged to profit or loss R (KR ),/ 0k
(Note 10(a)) (KfaE10(a) (81) 88
At 31 December RT-—A=+—H 246 327
The deferred tax liabilities recognised at the balance sheet date REZEBRERZEETBAGBERE IR
represented deferred tax arising from accelerated depreciation WEHKR ZELERIE o
allowances.
33. SHARE CAPITAL 33. B#&
2016 2015
ZE-XRF —Z-hF
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
[ kx| R & i ]
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARET T

Domestic shares of RMB0.10 each SR EE A E#0.107T

A AR 387,750,000 38,775 387,750,000 38,775

H shares of RMBO0.10 each BEEEARE0.107T
AIHRA% 172,500,000 17,250 172,500,000 17,250
560,250,000 56,025 560,250,000 56,025

104  Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2016



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

34. BALANCE SHEET AND MOVEMENT OF 34. XA FHNEERABREREEN

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY S
(a) Balance sheet of the Company (@) AAFTNEBEEERB/R
As at 31 December
R+=BA=+—AH
2016 2015
—E-RF —ZT—h8F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt AR¥T R ARBF T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEREE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Bearer biological assets TRBEMEE 10,844 5,557
Property, plant and equipment Y - R KREE 172,672 134,986
Prepaid land lease payments B LEe 15,974 16,428
Construction in progress FEEIR 23,271 74,557
Investment in subsidiaries RETBRARMEE 20 25,000 25,500
Intangible assets B EE - 659
247,761 257,687
Current assets hEEE
Inventories FE 26,055 28,695
Trade receivables JEWE 5 R 269,703 224,624
Other receivables, deposits Hib W zos - 5]e
and prepayments SSEENE QL 93,005 83,271
Loans receivables ERE R 5,000 12,500
Prepaid land lease payments B LEe 454 454
Available-for-sale financial assets At EMBEE 303,540 154,500
Cash and cash equivalents He RREZEEY 154,662 179,837
852,419 683,881
Current liabilities HRBAE
Trade payables e E 5 8ER 31,698 21,857
Other payables, deposits received HMEMRIE - EWGI€
and accruals NEETE R 105,413 93,187
Amounts due to subsidiaries FE{T T B A B FRIA 20 24,721 24,660
Deferred income EIEUA 1,949 1,949
Income tax payable FELS PTIS AR 20,120 13,416
Other tax payables H e Hi18 18,853 13,445
Bank borrowings RITIER - 4,000
Loans from government authority B #EER 697 682
Dividend payable FERARE 1,468 1,501
204,919 174,697
Net current assets MEBEFE 647,500 509,184
Total assets less current liabilities BEERTDERE 895,261 766,871

EMEEEREACEEROHERAH
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34. BALANCE SHEET AND MOVEMENT OF 34. X RN EEEEREREN

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (continued) B85 (E)
(a) Balance sheet of the Company (continued) (@) AATMEEERER(E)
As at 31 December
Rt+t=A=+—~H
2016 2015
—E-AF —T—hHF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
HisE AR¥T ARETT
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Loans from government authority BT & 3R 2,273 2,908
Bank borrowings RITIEE - -
Deferred income RIEU A 25,914 27,863
Deferred tax liabilities FEERIEA G 246 327
28,433 31,098
Net assets EEFE 866,828 735,773
EQUITY s
Share capital AR 7N 33 56,025 56,025
Reserves i (o) 810,803 679,748
Total equity AR 866,828 735,773

ZEVBBREN_ZE—LF=A
“TREEESHERTERM -

These financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 30 March 2017.

ZHANG HONG ZHAO BAO GANG
[T s =i
Director Director
EF EF

ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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34. BALANCE SHEET AND MOVEMENT OF 34. X RN EEEEREREN

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (continued) 2E (&)
(b) Movement of reserve of the Company (b) ELAFRENEE
Statutory
Share surplus Retained
premium reserve profits Total
RGRE EERERRE R & & Fl At

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBTT AR®Tr AR%Tx
(Note i) (Note ii)
(Htati) (Ktatii)

At 1 January 2015 N s T
—HA—H 51,098 33,242 477,183 561,523
Profit for the year RF [E A = = 118,225 118,225

Appropriation to statutory #zkEAFE
surplus reserve kN ] - - - -

At 31 December 2015 R-ZTE—RHEF
+=—HA=+—H 51,098 33,242 595,408 679,748

Profit for the year INE E % T - - 131,055 131,055

Appropriation to statutory B EEAE
surplus reserve BRI - - - -

At 31 December 2016 I &
+—8 51,098 33,242 726,463 810,803

EMABEREECEERNHBERAR 107
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34. BALANCE SHEET AND MOVEMENT OF
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

(b) Movement of reserve of the Company (continued)
(i) Share premium
The Company’s share premium account represents
the premium arising from shares issued at a price in
excess of their par value per share.

(i)  Statutory surplus reserve
In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC
and the Company’s articles of association, the
Company and its PRC subsidiaries will appropriate
10 percent of their annual statutory net profit (after
offsetting any prior years’ losses) to the statutory
surplus reserve account. When the balance of
such reserve reaches 50 percent of these entities
share capital, any further appropriation is optional.
The statutory surplus reserve can be utilised to
offset prior years’ losses or to issue bonus shares
However, such statutory surplus reserve must be
maintained at a minimum of 25 percent of share
capital after such issuance.
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BE(E)
(b) ADTREHEE(E)
() REGEE

(ii)

AR B A BB S
EEZEBRBETZROEEZ

i 8

EEBREE

RBPERFDERARFRA
BRAA - AR REAP BN
B A RNk B EF EE R EE
& - HEE10%FEIATE L
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(UAREZT)
35. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 35. EAREKIE
At the balance sheet date, the Group had capital commitments REER @ AEBEFTOERERENE
contracted for but not provided for as follows: RAEVELNT -
2016 2015
—E-XF —E—AF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ET ARETTT
Acquisition of intangible assets Wi R & 1,750 1,750
Acquisition of construction in progress BAEEILRR - 650
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment BAYE - HE MK 672 221
2,422 2,621
36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36. BEALTRS
Related party transactions concerned with numbers of key FRELETETEEKREZBHEBAEALT
management during the year comprised only remuneration RGEBEANTESTZNHE - HBE
paid to the Executive Directors, and is set out in Note 14 to the RIS RERMITEL1S o
financial statements.
Saved as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial Rt E4RE M IS HmR A M D FTIREIN -
statements, the Group has the following transactions with REFEEH A IR S
related parties:
2016 2015
ZE-RF —E—AhF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARET T

Salaries paid to a close family member IHEHEETESED
of a director BHEHE 67 -

TMAEEREE(CEERMHBERAA 109
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37. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37. EXEmERE

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders, by
pricing products and services commensurately with the level of
risk and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to ensure optimal capital structure and shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings
and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes judgements to the capital structure in light
of changes in economic conditions.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its capital
structure using a gearing ratio, which is total debts divided
by adjusted capital. Total debts represent total borrowings.
Adjusted capital includes all components of shareholders’ equity
less unrealized reserves.

In order to maintain or adjust the gearing ratio, the Group may
issue new shares, return capital to shareholders, raise new debt
financing or sell assets to reduce debt.

The gearing ratio at 31 December 2016 and 2015 was 0.3% and
1.1% respectively, calculated as follows:

BEXEE
AEEEREAZTEARRREALE
Al SRR RO BE 1 T B 48 ER R B /K P 4R
HE 2 Em PR EEARESSEKA
EE - EERRREE@R -

7S BT R B B A RIS RS AT R
B LA A RS (BT R AT
BB AHRIR B Y 47 L R ARFE S R TR
B B A N IR SRR 4 7 I
% AR S B (A AR
HE B

REZEZNED  AEBEAERAFELXME
RERHEBERREZEE  MEKAEE
NEABRER - BFARERERE - &
ARBEABRMBRRERABRAZE
i o

RERFRAEERNBELLE  NEBEAEE
BT ARRBEEAN - (FHHFOE
BREIHEEENRIALE

R-E—RNER—_T—RF+_A=+—
AZEAREBRELESHA0.3%K%1.1% °
AHEMT

2016 2015
—E-RE —ZET—hHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T ARET T

Total debts (BTG
— Bank borrowings —RITIEE - 4,000
— Loans from government authority — BT H#EE R 2,970 3,590
2,970 7,590
Shareholders’ equity N B 7 866,625 723,955
Gearing ratio BARBELR 0.3% 1.1%
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial risk management

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks,
including credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk, currency risk,
price risk and fair values risk. The Group does not hold or issue
derivative financial instruments either for hedging or for trading
purposes. These risks are managed by the Group’s financial
management policies and practices as described below to
minimise potential effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(a) Credit risk

The Group’s principal financial assets are cash and
bank balances, trade and other receivables and loans
receivables. The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to its trade, other and loans receivables. The Group
allows an average credit period of 180 days to its trade
customers. The amounts presented in the balance sheets
are net of allowance for doubtful receivables. An allowance
for impairment is made where there is an identified loss
event which, based on previous experience, is evidence of
a reduction in the recoverability of the cash flows.

The Group does not have any significant credit risk
exposure to any single trade counterparty or any Group
of trade counterparties having similar characteristics. It
has policies in place to ensure that sales are made to
customers with an appropriate credit history.

The carrying amount of the trade and other receivables,
loans receivables and cash and bank balances included
in the consolidated balance sheet represents the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to the Group’s
financial assets.

(b) Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands, subject
to approval by the Company’s board of directors when
the borrowings exceed certain predetermined levels of
authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its
liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates, or if floating, based on
rates current at the balance sheet date) and the earliest
date the Group and the Company can be required to pay.

38. MiKEKRERE

BERRTE

AEBMENESEEASZLBHERR -
BAEEERR -  ABHELEAR - FIXE
M EEEE - BRERRAFERR -
AEENEREERBEITITESR T AEY
HREERS o ML RZEBR S
AEENTEEERREEERNMAER
NEEREHAEEM RPN EELE -

(a) EERE
AEEZEEBUKEERE S MIE
ITHBRUAREWNE SR - HafE
WRIBAREWER - X&EB 25
ERBREZREHEREZEZER
HiEUW R TEA R EWE R » A&
BEREEZRERHZTFHEER
B180H - EEREBEXRAMIIN SR
E R EWRIBERREE - 0BT
PBRNEEEEMBEATLERS
BERERWEETEIEE 8
W E R E R -

N £R B 3 % AT A S BUR A B —
Z—HEHIRHGHFAREANEE
B o RAEEE HEBRERRA
BREEETENTPELHEE -

e E ZiRR - EMEUGRIE - &
BER BReRBITESNESE
ERERAMINERESAEE
WARBNUBEEAZENTRSE
EmkE -

(b) REELEEE
AEEETECEERAETER
BNREERE  BEEHMRERS
BRNREEEFARNERRESH
Ko HEEBRSRETEELE
ERBKFRABARTESEH
e AEENBRAEHERER
BESFRERENTABERS
MREEGSEHRSFHE - AR
NEEHEREHRBESHR -

TR AEBUBABNEE

WER T & AZIH B S - DIRIEET
MARTRASRE (BERESLOH
K RMBFEHANE - AEREE
B EAENNE)ARKREE &
RARIAIBEAN KA & F B HFE -

TG B REL(CEERNERAR]
ZE—NFFR
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

38. M EREE(H)

Financial risk management (continued) B R EE ()
(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) HEELEEE(E)
Total Within More than More than
contractual 1year 1yearbut 2yearsbut
Carrying undiscounted oron less than less than More than
amount cash flow demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
HEES i#) —FRg —F#HE MERE
BEE RERLHE RER MER IFR IF#
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AR%TR AR%TR AR%TR AR%TR AR%TR
2016 —E-RE
Trade payables R E HERR 31,698 31,698 31,698 - - -
Other payables HENZIE 105,413 105,413 105,413 - - -
Income tax payable FEfFT157% 20,120 20,120 20,120 - - -
Other tax payables ~ H{f ENTHiE 18,853 18,853 18,853 - - -
Dividend payable FET RS 1,468 1,468 1,468 - - -
Loans from B HEER
government
authority 2,970 3,272 806 719 1,747 -
180,522 180,824 178,358 719 1,747 -
Total Within More than More than
contractual 1 year 1yearbut 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted oron less than less than More than
amount cash flow demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
AIRARIR —FAK —F%E WERE
FEE Rengs REX MERA 1EA hE%
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR®TT AR®TRT ARETT ARETRT ARETRT
2015 ZB-1F
Trade payables ENESER 21,857 21,857 21,857 - - -
Other payables HAt TR 95,841 95,841 95,841 - - -
Income tax payable  JEF{EH 13,416 13,416 13,416 - - -
Other tax payables  E o fEfFi1E 13,695 13,695 13,695 - - -
Dividend payable — EfTAZE 1,501 1,501 1,501 - - -
Bank borrowings ~ $FTEE 4,000 4,120 4,120 = - -
Loans from BN HBEE T
government
authority 3,590 4,021 813 742 2,086 380
153,900 154,451 151,243 742 2,086 380
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Financial risk management (continued)
(c) Interest rate risk
The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from its
borrowings from the bank and the Huinan County Finance
Bureau. Borrowings at variable rates expose the Group
to cash flow interest rate risk. The Group’s interest rate
profile as monitored by the management is set out below:

. IR (&)
B R EE ()
(c) FIEmEpE

AEBONERRE2RERTR
BREMBENEER - RIFEBHHX
FHMERSARBERHRERE
MERR  XEEEEENAEE
FMRBRESIT

2016 2015
—E-X —T—hfF
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
BRA=E BEIEH =
% RMB’000 % RMB’000
AR®T T ARETTT
Variable rate borrowings ¥ 8 fEE
Loans from government B4R & 3K
authority 3.66% 2,970 3.66% 3,590
Bank borrowings IRITEE - - 3% 4,000

The interest rate and terms of repayment of the Group’s
borrowings are disclosed in Note 29 and 30 to the financial
statements.

At 31 December 2016, it was estimated that a general
increase or decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, would decrease or
increase the Group’s profit after taxation and retained
profits by RMB25,000 (2015: RMB65,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred
at the balance sheet date and had been applied to
the exposure to interest rate risk for the borrowings in
existence at that date. The 100 basis point increase or
decrease represents the management’s assessment of
a reasonably possible change in interest rates over the
period until the next annual balance sheet date.

AL E ) fE & I 2R 8 SR B 55
A M FE29FNB0H EE ©

R-ZE—RE+-_A=+—H0 " &
REMBEHTE  MERAE
S TRE100MEERS - At ISR A S
B 7 1% 05 F AR B a2 A1)k > Bk 4 A0
ARK25000L(ZF—HF : AR
#65,0007T) °

FBRRE DT T BRE R E R &
EHAFREH  BRst ARZEH
BEEMERBEETE - EAKTHR
100 AEEEHHET —FE
EERIFHBAEA g HENE R
BB RS o

TG B REL(CEERNERAR]
ZE—NFFR
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Financial risk management (continued)
(d) Currency risk
The Group mainly operated in the PRC with most of
the transactions settled in Renminbi and did not have
significant exposure to risk resulting from changes in
foreign currency exchange rates.

(e) Price risk
The Group is not exposed to any equity price risk or
commodity price risk.

(f) Fair value estimation
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets,
including cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
receivables, loan receivables, the Group’s financial
liabilities, including trade and other payables, bank
borrowings and loans from government authority,
approximate their fair values due to their short maturities.

The nominal values less any estimated credit adjustments
for financial assets and liabilities with a maturity of less
than one year are assumed to approximate their fair
values. The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure
purposes is estimated by discounting the future
contractual cash flows at the current market interest
rate that is available to the Group for similar financial
instruments.
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39. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 39. i EERUBEEBEZEERE

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY 7R E
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and REBR - R"FERZT—HF+=H
financial liabilities as recognised at 31 December 2016 and 2015 —t+—HFERNUEEERT KA ESN
may be categorised as follows: BRTEE AT 4R NPTt T LA 48
2016 2015
AL —ZT—AF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREF T ARETT

Financial assets BMKEE
Available-for-sale financial assets A ET K EE 303,540 154,500
Loans and receivables (including cash B3 & W GRIE

and bank balances) (BRERE RIRITER) 522,446 492,089
Financial liabilities =R
Financial liabilities measured B 75 & & T IR SR AT B

at amortised cost 208,385 183,712

40. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 40. EF#t %k

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue BEEEeR_ZT—tF=ZA=Z+HEHRTE
by the Board of Directors on 30 March 2017. T T35 I F B FS Rk o
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(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published
audited financial statements is set out below.

Operating Results

FEmE G LTI
o AR
TE

\m};\)@

Year ended 31 December

MBmER 2 BEDE
RREHINOT ©

HET-A=1-HLEE

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012

—E-RE —T-R%F —T—mE —T-=F% —T——F

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AR¥TR ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARET T

Revenue A 654,119 539,134 601,715 457,746 353,247

Cost of sales SHEM (135,266) (108,352) (115,213) (84,689) (63,593)

Gross profit EA 518,853 430,782 486,502 373,057 289,654
Other income and net gains PO L6

or losses Eﬁ?éi‘}%%ﬁ 16,135 23,913 18,309 14,877 9,977

Distribution and selling costs AHREERY (327,202) (271,170) (276,949) (255,319) (203,658)

Administrative expenses THFx (40,400) (45,534) (67,901) (37,347) (26,808)

Profit from operations IS R 167,386 137,991 159,961 95,268 69,165

Finance costs %ﬁéﬁﬁw (101) (209) (297) (659) (296)

Profit before income tax R BT S5 AR Al 167,285 137,782 159,664 94,609 68,869

Income tax expense FERHAY (24,615) (20,144) (26,879) (15,335) (10,115)
Profit for the year attributable to ~ FRAARHER A

owners of the Company FE(EER 142,670 117,638 132,785 79,274 58,754

Assets and Liabilities EERAE
As at 31 December
R+=A=t-8

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012

—E-R"E il —Z-mF 2= —2——F

RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AR¥TR ARETIL ARBTL AREBTL ARBTL

Bearer biological assets NRBENEE 10,844 5,557 5,169 4,890 2,850

Property, plant and equipment ER B 172,672 134,986 144,307 99,483 107,462

Prepared lease payments BRI E 15,974 16,428 16,882 17,335 17,789

Construction in progress EEI%E 23,271 74,557 66,781 145,834 66,777

Intangible assets BVEE - 659 2,519 11,229 15,855

Current assets TEEE 852,495 675,807 548,008 371,352 325,319

Current liabilities mBEE (180,198) (152.941) (151,239) (151,461) (121,886)

Non-current liabilities E Y (28,433) (31,098) (26,110) (25,130) (19,908)

Net assets BEZE 866,625 723,955 606,317 473,532 394,258

Share capital Hﬁzli 56,025 56,025 56,025 56,025 56,025

Reserves & 810,600 667,930 550,292 417,507 338,233

Total equity s 866,625 723,955 606,317 473,532 394,258
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